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          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Good afternoon,

          3  ladies and gentlemen. My name is Council Member

          4  Wendell Foster and I am chair of the Committee on

          5  Parks, Recreation and Cultural Affairs and

          6  Intergroup Relations.

          7                 Today the Parks Committee, jointly

          8  with the Committee on General Welfare, will conduct

          9  an oversight hearing on the use of the Work

         10  Experience Program workers by the Department of

         11  Parks and Recreation.

         12                 The Work Experience Program, also

         13  known as WEP, is the workfare component of the

         14  City's welfare reform initiative. The program is

         15  overseen by the Office of Employment Services at the

         16  Human Resources Administration and requires

         17  employable public assistance recipients to work a

         18  certain number of hours, at a specific assignment

         19  for six months, or until they find employment, in

         20  order to maintain their welfare benefits.

         21                 Currently, WEP workers are assigned

         22  to City and State agencies with a few assigned to

         23  non-profit organizations. The largest number of WEP

         24  workers assigned to any one City agency serve at the

         25  Department of Parks and Recreation where WEP workers
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          2  perform basic maintenance tasks, including cleaning

          3  debris and removing garbage.

          4                 Under the current Administration, the

          5  number of WEP workers at the Parks Department

          6  expanded from731 during the Fall of 1993 to the

          7  present number of 6,036. The Parks Department has

          8  attributed the improvement in cleanliness and the

          9  overall condition of neighborhood parks and

         10  playgrounds in large part to the WEP workers

         11  assigned to the Department.

         12                 The Parks Department also runs a

         13  special program known as the Parks Career Training

         14  Program, or the PACT program. Participants in this

         15  program spend additional hours per week at the Parks

         16  Department, where in addition to their regular WEP

         17  work assignment they are taught skills in custodial,

         18  clerical, horticultural, security and maintenance

         19  services by Parks employees, and receive job

         20  counseling and job placement assistance.

         21                 The Parks Department has allocated

         22  $6.1 million in funding for the Work Experience

         23  Program for Fiscal 1997, including $3.3 million for

         24  the Parks Career Training Program and $2.6 million

         25  to pay for Parks employees to supervise WEP workers.
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          2                 Members of the Council have been

          3  concerned about a number of issues relating to WEP

          4  program as administered by the Department of Parks

          5  and Recreation, including:

          6                 1) The ability of WEP workers who do

          7  not participate in PACT to receive training in

          8  marketable job skills.

          9                 2) The selection process for

         10  participation in the PACT program.

         11                 3) The requirement that PACT

         12  participants work additional hours at the Parks

         13  Department without additional compensation.

         14                 4) The health and safety of the WEP

         15  workers.

         16                 5) The ramifications of the expanding

         17  use of WEP workers to supplant Parks employees and

         18  the effect upon the Department's workforce of

         19  promoting more and more Parks Department employees

         20  to WEP Supervisor.

         21                 6) The success rate of the WEP

         22  program and the PACT program in placing participants

         23  into gainful employment.

         24                 During this hearing we hope to

         25  explore these, any other issues, related to use of
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          2  WEP workers at the Department of Parks and

          3  Recreation.

          4                 Witnesses expected to testify

          5  include: Alan Moss, First Deputy Commissioner of

          6  Parks and Recreation; Seth Diamond, Deputy

          7  Commissioner for the Office of Employment Services

          8  at the Human Resources Administration; Michael Hood,

          9  President of Local 1505, District Council 37; Karen

         10  Yau, staff attorney at the National Employment Law

         11  Project; and several WEP workers assigned to the

         12  Department of Parks and Recreation.

         13                 If there is anyone else here today

         14  who would like to speak on our topic today, please

         15  sign in with the Sergeant-At-Arms. Just raise your

         16  hand and the Sergeant-At-Arm will give you a card to

         17  be filled out so that you will have time to testify,

         18  anyone desirous of testifying other than those names

         19  called.

         20                 This is a joint hearing with the

         21  General Welfare Committee hearing, and they will be

         22  here shortly. Some of our members are next door in

         23  Public Safety hearings and you will see members in

         24  and out during this entire hearing. I hope there

         25  will not be too many ins and outs because I don't
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          2  expect us to remain here until Christmas Eve. I know

          3  some of you have money you would like to spend and

          4  go give it to the City with your taxes so we can pay

          5  some bills.

          6                 Coming in is Council Member Andrew

          7  Eristoff, who is bouncing from here to there, from

          8  Manhattan, and Council Member Morton Povman from

          9  Queens, and we are joined by staff members, our

         10  counsel and also other staff members.

         11                 Commissioner Moss, would you like to

         12  introduce yourself and your other staff members and

         13  the people at the table with you and begin your

         14  testimony?

         15                 Let me say this. Those of you who

         16  give us printed testimony, unless you feel it

         17  necessary, you do not have to read the entire

         18  testimony, just give us a synopsis of the testimony

         19  so we can read it ourselves and thereby give us more

         20  times for questions to ask you.

         21                 It has been my experience, and every

         22  often, when we have a lot of written testimony, that

         23  leaves little time for us to ask you questions and

         24  we have to always give you the questions we had in

         25  mind and for you to send them back to us in writing,
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          2  which is really not satisfactory.

          3                 I do not mean that what you have

          4  written is not important, I simply mean that we will

          5  take time to read that later, and you can highlight

          6  that for us, and if there is anything which arises

          7  from your testimony that we should bet back to you,

          8  we would be glad to do so.

          9                 I did not say that just to keep you

         10  quiet, Commissioner. I simply said that as a way of

         11  explanation.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Mr.

         13  Chairman, may I make one statement for the record,

         14  please?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: I want to

         17  apologize for being late, from having to split my

         18  time between this hearing and the hearing next door.

         19  In fact, I am co-presiding over a hearing next door

         20  and with your permission and with your patience I

         21  will attempt to be here as long as possible.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: I understand

         23  that, thank you very much, Council Member Eristoff.

         24                 All right, Commissioner, would you be

         25  kind enough to introduce the people at the table
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          2  with you, and then others you feel would testify.

          3                 Again, may I say, now, this is not

          4  necessary. If you feel that you have something to

          5  say to this Committee that is worth hearing, and I

          6  am sure it is worth hearing if you say so. You may

          7  fill out one of the forms from the Sergeants and we

          8  will try and hear as many as people as possible.

          9                 Commissioner, I promise not to

         10  interrupt again. In fact, I didn't interrupt you

         11  because you hadn't started.

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I

         13  hadn't started.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: All right, I am

         15  cranking up now.

         16                 As you know, my name is Alan Moss,

         17  and I am the First Deputy over at Parks, and to your

         18  right, my left, is Seth Diamond, Deputy Commissioner

         19  at Human Resources. To my right is Leslie Webster,

         20  and she is Assistant to the Commissioner of Parks,

         21  and to her right is Robert Garafola, and he is the

         22  Deputy Commissioner at Parks.

         23                 I am going to use the testimony and

         24  just go over that because it is rather detailed and

         25  I think that some of these things warrant that.
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          2                 The expansion of the WEP program at

          3  Parks began in January 1995, the program had been

          4  there prior to that but the real expansion began

          5  there in January of 1995.

          6                 By March of '95 our WEP population

          7  had grown to a little over 2000. By the end of the

          8  Fiscal Year '95, 5,000 or a little better than 5,000

          9  people were assigned to Parks. At the end of '96 we

         10  had 7,243 assigned to Parks. They have been -- I

         11  guess we are up around 7,600 now, 7,700 almost, and

         12  these are distributed through the various boroughs,

         13  their assignments are in various boroughs.

         14                 They are generally assigned to sites

         15  that are located within their zip code or near their

         16  zip code to encourage them and to help them arrive

         17  at the work sites. Very often they request a change

         18  in location when they do report for orientation and

         19  those requests are honored. Once they have begun to

         20  work, they sometimes request a transfer and we try

         21  to honor those and accommodate them, and sometimes

         22  the change of a supervisor is very helpful.

         23                 Our WEP orientation is the first

         24  encounter between Parks and each new WEP

         25  participant. Each borough WEP coordinator leads
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          2  these sessions every other Monday. At orientation

          3  our coordinator teaches WEP participants Park rules

          4  and regulations, including the agency's policy on

          5  lateness, absences, discrimination, sexual

          6  harassment, removal of hazardous materials and basic

          7  right-to-know training.

          8                 In addition, the WEP coordinator

          9  explains how participants obtain job-related

         10  equipment and clothing, such as boots, rain gear,

         11  winter coat, gloves and other articles.

         12                 I just would like you to see that

         13  this is not flimsy. This is substantial clothing.

         14  Nobody is sent out -- a winter jacket, a rain

         15  slicker, boots, a vest for safety purposes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Now, these are

         17  supplied to the workers; is that correct? Without

         18  cost?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: No,

         20  there is no cost. Those are supplied free of charge.

         21  They get a pair of work gloves. If you are making

         22  outbursts you are going to be removed from the room.

         23  If you have something to say, fill out a card and we

         24  will hear you; is that fair enough?

         25                 I failed to say that when I conduct
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          2  these meetings that everyone is treated courteously,

          3  regardless of how you may feel about it. Thank you

          4  very much.

          5                 I am sorry, Commissioner.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I

          7  just wanted to give you the sense of the type of

          8  preparation and sense of the concern that Parks has

          9  for its WEP workers. It does not treat its WEP

         10  workers in any way different than its own employees.

         11  We don't ask or we don't require anything different

         12  than we do of our own employees. They receive

         13  specific work assignments, and over 95 percent of

         14  the WEP participants perform indoor and outdoor

         15  cleaning, which includes removing litter, glass,

         16  debris, graffiti, cleaning comfort stations,

         17  maintaining ball fields, flower beds, lawns, washing

         18  windows and walls.

         19                 At the end of their orientation,

         20  Parks' WEP participants are given the name of the

         21  supervisor who will be their WEP crew chief. These

         22  supervisors are trained in semi-annual sections on

         23  specific rules of the program, as well as

         24  agency-wide regulations and time-keeping procedures.

         25                 Most importantly, they receive

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (212) 227-6724

                                                            13

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  training in the art of supervision by participating

          3  and role playing with scenarios involving sexual

          4  harassment, hypodermic needles and work absences.

          5                 To ensure that our WEP participants

          6  are well equipped and well supervised, we frequently

          7  interview them and conduct on-site inspections with

          8  WEP crews. The results of WEP efforts have been

          9  impressive. Our parks are cleaner than they have

         10  been in many years.

         11                 The ratings, the cleanliness ratings

         12  have gone from -- in the past three years have gone

         13  from 70 percent to 92 percent, and our acceptable

         14  ratings for each of the five cleanliness, litter,

         15  glass, graffiti, weeds and lawn have gone up over

         16  the same period. The most dramatic improvements

         17  occur for litter where a number of sites rated

         18  unacceptable dropped from 33 to 13 percent, and from

         19  graffiti from 11 percent to three percent.

         20                 As a result of the availability of

         21  WEP workers to clean parks, our full-time employees

         22  have been able to work on projects that involve a

         23  higher degree of skill and training. Many of our

         24  former park workers, our CPWs, are now supervising

         25  WEP crews. Other CPWs now concentrate on more
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          2  complex maintenance tasks from sidewalk repairs to

          3  play equipment modifications.

          4                 As a result, we have improved the

          5  structural features of our parks, and this is

          6  reflected in our overall rating, which rose from 35

          7  percent in the summer of '94 to 44 percent in the

          8  summer of '95 and to 60 percent this past summer.

          9                 In addition to enhancing our parks,

         10  we strongly believe that the program helps

         11  participants.

         12                 First, hard-working WEP participants

         13  are at an advantage in competing for park seasonal

         14  jobs. From April of '94 through October of '96, 187

         15  WEP participants were placed at three-month seasonal

         16  positions in parks. During the same period, 89 WEPs

         17  found six-month seasonal position in parks,

         18  including 21 whose lines were extended for longer

         19  periods.

         20                 We also offer WEP participants the

         21  opportunity to enroll in the Parks Career Training

         22  Program, PACT. Admission to PACT and Employment

         23  Training and Placement Program is voluntary.

         24                 PACT staff recruits participants

         25  exclusively from the WEP program. Candidates are
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          2  usually recommended by their WEP supervisor, but

          3  they can also apply to PACT independently. Each

          4  applicant is interviewed by a PACT staff person and

          5  participants or PACT trainees are selected primarily

          6  for their demonstrated reliability and motivation.

          7                 As a part of this training,

          8  participants contributed valuable services to parks

          9  in a number of diverse fields.

         10                 The PACT in 1995, you had 269 WEP

         11  participants and that has gone up and as of November

         12  18th, this past November 18th, we had 541 people

         13  enrolled in PACT and we expect that 1,000 people

         14  will participate in this program this fiscal year.

         15                 In return for their commitment, the

         16  trainees may pursue employment-related services,

         17  including free regular and commercial driver

         18  training and licensing, first aid certification and

         19  access to general equivalency diploma classes

         20  sponsored by the Board of Education.

         21                 In addition, Parks supervisors serve

         22  as on-the-job trainers for PACT. Along with their

         23  regular duties as Park supervisors and staff

         24  members, these trainers teach participants the work

         25  they perform themselves in such fields as security,
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          2  construction, computer installation support and

          3  horticulture and we are now looking into a climber

          4  and pruner training group.

          5                 PACT also employs full-time and

          6  part-time placement specialists and counselors who

          7  provide individual instruction and resume writing

          8  and interview preparation. PACT's jobs developers

          9  identify job listings, establish ties with companies

         10  and assist in the placement of PACT participants.

         11                 From April of '94 through November of

         12   '96, the PACT program placed 547 participants in

         13  full-time employment. Of these, 87 participants were

         14  placed at six-month seasonal positions, including 29

         15  whose lines were extended for a long period, and 460

         16  found full-time positions elsewhere, mostly in the

         17  private sector.

         18                 In addition, 287 PACT participants

         19  found three-month seasonal positions with Parks and

         20  18 participants were hired for three-month seasonal

         21  positions elsewhere. We hope to find full-time jobs

         22  for 300 PACT participants this fiscal year up from

         23  the 220 trainees that we placed in Fiscal '96.

         24                 As of November 18, '96, less than

         25  five months into this fiscal year, we have already
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          2  placed 151 PACT participants in full-time positions.

          3  We are very proud of Mayor Giuliani's Work

          4  Experience Program and our Parks Career Training

          5  Program for the improvements they brought to our

          6  City and the people who live there.

          7                 I will be pleased to answer any

          8  questions you might have.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Yes. In hearing

         10  what you said and in reading the statement, I still

         11  don't see why you have so many WEP workers, and if

         12  you have that many, what were the Park employees

         13  doing prior to the workers coming on board? Does it

         14  mean that all of our parks were filthy and uncared

         15  for? Seven-thousand people is a lot of people. That

         16  is question number one.

         17                 Number two, are they evenly

         18  distributed throughout the City? The first question

         19  is why so many. And if they are there now and you

         20  need 7,000 now, what were the Park Department

         21  workers doing prior to this to keep the parks up to

         22  date? Or could they not perform their jobs

         23  adequately?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Well,

         25  I think that prior to the expansion of this program
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          2  the ratings of the parks reflected this situation.

          3  With the expansion of the program beginning in 1954,

          4  the ratings began to go up and that was in relation

          5  to the number of WEP referrals that we were taking

          6  in.

          7                 What it is, is that the WEPs do the

          8  cleaning work, basic cleaning work in parks freeing

          9  up our remaining staff to be able to do more complex

         10  repairs.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: So, the answer to

         12  my question would be, then the Parks Department did

         13  not have the capability to keep the parks up as well

         14  as they are being kept up now; is that correct?

         15  Prior to the WEP workers?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I

         17  think that has been historically so. Probably the

         18  Parks Department had worked beyond its ability since

         19  the 1930s. I think that it has been a neglected

         20  agency, it has a fraction of one percent of the City

         21  budget and it has been underfunded I would say for

         22  many years.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Since the 1930s?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I

         25  would say it has been underfunded since the 1930s.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Were there any

          3  full-time or part-time workers that were laid off as

          4  a result of the WEP workers coming aboard?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Not

          6  one full-time or part-time worker has been laid off

          7  as a result of this program.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: But it has

          9  hindered hiring your additional workers, right?

         10  Since you have these workers, have you hired

         11  additional?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: There

         13  has been a hiring freeze, the headcount has been

         14  imposed on the agency and that has been that way for

         15  a number of years.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Now, it says the

         17  supervisors train these workers and you help them

         18  get part-time and full-time employment both within

         19  your system and outside of your system. Could you

         20  give us an example of employment you have been able

         21  to secure outside of the Parks Department for the

         22  workers?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Yes,

         24  sure.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: We have
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          2  a program in the Parks Department it is called the

          3  Parks Career Training Program, and what we do is we

          4  take people who volunteer from the WEP program and

          5  they go in the PACT program and they go into

          6  training and they get into training, they could do

          7  horticulture, they could do security training where

          8  they actually train with our Park Enforcement

          9  Patrol, for instance. They go through the training,

         10  they work with us, they get on the job, they get in

         11  class, and they actually go out and we get them jobs

         12  in the private sector.  We have found jobs for them

         13  with Wells Fargo and a number of other security

         14  companies, and they are off social service and they

         15  are currently working.

         16                 We have a number of other people who

         17  have gotten jobs and they have done that and they

         18  have done this through their system where they have

         19   --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: I think it is

         21  commendable that you have got -- I think you said

         22  over 500 jobs.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: That's

         24  correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: But these 500 are
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          2  not all security people, are they, with the Wells

          3  Fargo?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLO: They

          5  are not security. They are a variety of jobs - some

          6  clerical, some actually have gotten a little bit of

          7  computer jobs, we have also gotten a lot of

          8  maintenance-related jobs, and we have a list of all

          9  of the companies, the rates they pay and --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: If you could

         11  supply us with that we would like to see that.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA:

         13  Absolutely.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Am I right in

         15  saying that you are of the opinion that had you not

         16  trained them, they may not have qualified for these

         17  jobs?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: I feel

         19  the great majority of people that got these jobs, if

         20  they had not been trained, we provide them with

         21  resumes, we bring them in we go through all sorts of

         22  training in terms of interviews, how to approach the

         23  interview when they are going for a job, we set up

         24  interviews with them, we make the job contacts and I

         25  would say the vast majority of these people would

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (212) 227-6724

                                                            22

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  not have gotten these jobs.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: I see.

          4                 I will yield to my colleague, Mr.

          5  Povman.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER POVMAN: Commissioner,

          7  just to give me a sense of proportion, before the

          8  WEP program began, how many employees of the

          9  Department of Parks were performing the services

         10  that the WEP employees are performing?

         11  Approximately?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: You

         13  mean what was our headcount in '94?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER POVMAN: Yes.

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Just

         16  a moment.

         17                 It was about 2,800 in 1994,

         18  approximately. We are down to 2,500 now. A number of

         19  park people that took early retirement took

         20  advantage of the buy-outs.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER POVMAN: Now, with

         22  7,000 WEP workers and 2,500 parks employees, that is

         23  almost 10,000 workers, is that the upper limits of

         24  what the Parks Department requires, or where does

         25  that fit in in terms of their needs?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: We

          3  would have to take the WEP number and put it into

          4  full-time equivalence in order to be able to make a

          5  proper comparison, so that the WEP workers work 18

          6  hours, 18 and a half hours or something like that

          7  and what we would have to do is translate that into

          8  full-time equivalence in order to be able to compare

          9  that to -- you know, it would be a full-time work

         10  force.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER POVMAN: Would you say

         12  that with the present work force of WEP and the

         13  Parks Department employees, that there is no reason

         14  for any park not to be cared for in the City of New

         15  York?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: No,

         17  that is not the case. I wish it were that way. There

         18  are very, very substantial tracks of land that Parks

         19  Department has and we get illegal dumping in that

         20  area, in those areas. There are large forested areas

         21  that we have not been able to get to, and the major

         22  focus of what we are talking about here is working

         23  and maintaining playgrounds in high use areas in the

         24  park system, that doesn't represent the entire park

         25  system.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER POVMAN: The Chairman

          3  asked the question, and I don't believe it was

          4  answered, if it was I apologize; is there any way of

          5  telling us how the WEP workers are allocated to what

          6  boroughs and what numbers?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:  Yes,

          8  we can give you the allocation and the numbers. As a

          9  first cut out, we try to place them in areas that

         10  are convenient for them in terms of transportation.

         11  We have 2,200 in the Bronx, 1,900 in Brooklyn, 1,800

         12  in Manhattan, 14 almost 1,500 in Queens and 197 in

         13  Staten Island.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER POVMAN: Are those

         15  numbers part of a formula that was established based

         16  upon the acreage of the parks or some other bases,

         17  or is it just a random number?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: This

         19  is primarily based upon where they live, but in the

         20  case of Queens, because of the large number of

         21  playground they have, there are some that are

         22  transferred over to Queens, we are not talking about

         23  a substantial number.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER POVMAN: So you are

         25  saying that largely it is based on convenience so
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          2  there are fewer WEP workers who live in Queens than

          3  other boroughs, so, therefore Queens will end up

          4  with less workers as a result of that?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Yes.

          6  Or Staten Island, for example, has under 200.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER POVMAN: Okay, who

          8  supervises the WEP workers? Are they Parks

          9  Department employees?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Yes,

         11  they are. The line supervision is provided by Parks

         12  employees, the City park worker, and as a result of

         13  taking on the additional responsibility of

         14  supervising a WEP crew they get a salary adjustment.

         15  They get what is called a step-up and they get more

         16  pay.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER POVMAN: Now, the 7,000

         18  WEP workers that are presently with your agency, is

         19  there a request by the agency for more workers? Or

         20  how are the overall allocations made to the City

         21  agencies?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I

         23  would have to defer on that. I don't know how that

         24  is --

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: We take
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          2  several factors into account in allocating the

          3  workers throughout the City. The first is the

          4  Mayor's emphasis on placing WEP workers in areas

          5  where they impact on the City's quality of life, so

          6  the Parks Department is a prime example of that and

          7  as the Commissioner said, the results in terms of

          8  cleanliness show the positive affect they have had.

          9  So, we have worked with agencies like Parks and

         10  Sanitation and some of the others which have a

         11  particular concern for quality of life.

         12                 We have also looked for agencies that

         13  have a need and not every agency has a need

         14  obviously and the needs differ and their ability to

         15  handle numbers differ. So, it is a process which you

         16  go through in seeing which agencies are interested

         17  and trying to make decisions working with the

         18  agencies to reach a number that they think that they

         19  can effectively handle.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER POVMAN: This is

         21  strictly -- I have never received any requests from

         22  any agency for WEP except one agency and I don't

         23  believe that there was any response to it and there

         24  may be a good reason for it, but that at the library

         25  at the Queens Court in Queens they needed some
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          2  people just to move books around as part of the

          3  circulation and they thought that they could use

          4  help there because there was a shortage of

          5  personnel. I made the request on several occasions

          6  and I don't believe anything ever happened.

          7                 Is that something that is outside of

          8  the realm of the WEP employees?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Well,

         10  we would have to know more of the specifics but it

         11  sounds like generally something that we could talk

         12  about and consider. Certainly we work closely with

         13  the court system and there are many WEPs who clean

         14  court buildings through under the management of

         15  DECAS, and as a part of that project we do work very

         16  closely with the Office of Court Administration. So,

         17  this sounds like it would be along those lines and

         18  if you could give us the details, we would be happy

         19  to follow up.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER POVMAN: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Povman.

         23                 We have been joined by Council Member

         24  McCabe from the Borough called Brooklyn, and Ms.

         25  Watkins from Queens and Ms. Koslowitz also from
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          2  Queens. We are going to ask some questions, Ms.

          3  McCabe is going to ask you some questions, and what

          4  I am going to suggest is that perhaps, Commissioner,

          5  if you could stay there and let's bring Mr. Hood up

          6  because what I don't want to do is what we usually

          7  do, the Parks Department will take most of the time

          8  testifying and other folk who have something to say

          9  are always denied that right, not by you but by the

         10  length of the testimony.

         11                 There are some WEP workers here and

         12  our co-chair has just arrived and he has a panelist

         13  of WEP workers he would like to hear from, so Ms.

         14  McCabe, would you be kind enough to ask your

         15  question.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCABE: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chair.

         18                 I was reviewing your numbers that you

         19  provided with respect to job placements, whether it

         20  was for six-month positions of full-time positions

         21  and it would seem that my understanding of the --

         22  clearly the major goal of the WEP program was to get

         23  people back to work and you have about 7,600 or

         24  almost 7,700 WEP workers with the Parks Department

         25  now, correct? According to your statement here.
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Yes,

          3  those are the number of people assigned to Parks.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCABE: I am looking

          5  at your job placement section of your testimony and

          6  in there you have 187 WEP participants were placed

          7  at three-month seasonal positions and in that same

          8  period of time 89 WEP participants found six-month

          9  positions and 21 new state lines were extended for a

         10  longer period of time.

         11                 Now, set aside the PACT program, that

         12  is about 187 and 89 and so that is like 300 people

         13  then found some level of a position out of the

         14  7,000? Am I correct in reading your stats?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Those

         16  are people that we can account for. Whether WEPs

         17  went on to find employment on their own, that we

         18  have no statistics on, we have no way of knowing.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCABE: So, you are

         20  only keeping stats on the WEP workers who have been

         21  successful in obtaining a position within the Parks

         22  Department, except if they are in the PACT program

         23  where then you know they would end up.

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Yes,

         25  that's right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCABE: You seem to

          3  have a bit more success in placing people via the

          4  PACT program, would that be a correct assumption?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Yes,

          6  the thrust of the PACT program is to find private

          7  sector employment.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCABE: Okay, so I

          9  guess my concern is that while I have absolutely no

         10  disagreement with anybody who received a form of

         11  public assistance and is able bodied and whose

         12  family situation can accommodate, when that may not

         13  be the best word to use, that individual going to

         14  work, i.e. they don't have a six-month old child,

         15  but I don't see here -- I see here that we are

         16  getting people out to clean, but I don't see here

         17  the same level of equal commitment that I think that

         18  we need to do to have people secure long-term

         19  positions.

         20                 Are you going to be expanding PACT?

         21  Or what are you going to be doing about this?

         22                 You've got 7,000 people, but we don't

         23  have 7,000 permanent positions for them then.

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: No,

         25  that's right. We are essentially a user agency, the
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          2  PACT program is something that we implemented that

          3  we think is good and we think that it is successful

          4  and of course we would like to expand it. We would

          5  like to expand it and we hope that it will put 1,000

          6  people through the program this fiscal year.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCABE: And what are

          8  your plans for the next fiscal year for PACT?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I

         10  think it is a worthwhile -- we think it is a

         11  worthwhile thing and it should be expanded.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCABE: Is it done in

         13  cooperation with DOE?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: No.

         15  This is a program that functions within Parks.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCABE: Where did

         17  Parks develop the expertise to create PACT?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Let me

         19  just say first of all, we did expand the program

         20  going into this year. The year before we had

         21  approximately 200 full-time jobs that we developed,

         22  we went up to 300 this year. We have approximately

         23  1,000 people going through the program this year in

         24  the Parks Department. We are in that year right now.

         25                 We are going to see how that goes, if
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          2  we can accommodate it and we can do it, we will go

          3  back to HRA and maybe come up with some plans for an

          4  expansion of that program.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCABE: Are you unique

          6  in having this PACT program, or do other City

          7  agencies have a similar type of effort for WEP

          8  workers?

          9                 .

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: There

         11  are several City agencies that have programs similar

         12  to the PACT program, although the PACT program is

         13  probably the most developed, the Department of

         14  Citywide Administrative Services has a program

         15  geared for clerical training, which is in many ways

         16  similar.

         17                 Some of the other agencies have some

         18  extra enhanced Work Experience Programs where people

         19  get resume writing experience and job interview

         20  techniques, et cetera.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCABE: So, the agency

         22  that you mentioned is the only one that you can give

         23  me that --

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: That is

         25  the other most formal type of program. The others
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          2  are more informal, not with specific curriculum and

          3  those kinds of things like the PACT program has.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCABE: All right. I

          5  will defer to the chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you.

          7                 May I welcome to this hearing

          8  Council Member Eldridge, and Council Member Steve

          9  DiBrienza, who is the chair of this Committee, this

         10  meeting rather, he is co-chairing this with General

         11  Welfare and he has an opening statement. Then we

         12  will hear from Mr. Hood and then I will turn it over

         13  to the Chairman of the General Welfare Committee.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chairman, Council Member Foster. I happen to serve

         16  on the Parks Committee under your direction and know

         17  how much time and effort and energy both you and the

         18  staff of the Committee put into all of the issues

         19  that come before the Parks Committee.

         20                 This particular issue of course

         21  crosses into a multi-disciplinary approach because

         22  the WEP issue falls squarely within the purview of

         23  General Welfare of yet one of the biggest host

         24  agencies to WEP workers as the Parks Department. So,

         25  as we have chatted about having a joint hearing, you
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          2  quickly responded, and I think we piggy-backed on

          3  your date, I would have been here anyway, of course,

          4  for Parks. So, thank you and thank you to the

          5  Counsel to the Committee, Terzah Nasser, and all the

          6  other staff members.

          7                 Now, let me just set the stage here.

          8  When you do these joint hearings everyone brings to

          9  it their own style. Everyone knows that everyone who

         10  appears before the General Welfare Committee, every

         11  single witness, from the most important, the most

         12  powerful, to the most average citizen, is sworn in.

         13  We will forego that because it is a joint hearing,

         14  but everyone should understand that that in no way

         15  reflects on every single person who has appeared

         16  before us who is constantly and always sworn in, but

         17  for this joint hearing we will defer that procedure.

         18                 Secondly, let me apologize -- just

         19  some housekeeping -- let me apologize for being

         20  late. I was unavoidably detained in my district for

         21  an emergency. These things tend to happen to Council

         22  members. And as a result of my not being here,

         23  unfortunately the alignment of the hearing that we

         24  thought would be most productive, I was not here to

         25  explain; that is, and let me say particularly to the
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          2  Parks Department, what I would have preferred would

          3  be that you listen, sit and listen to Bruce Carson,

          4  WEP workers together, and Ralph Tricoche and Pat

          5  Holley, a panel of people involved in this program,

          6  and then you will listen to Michael Hood and Karen

          7  Yau, a president of Local 1505, DC 37 and a staff

          8  attorney for the National Employment Law Project

          9  respectively, and then ultimately you would come to

         10  the table, not because of any show of disrespect,

         11  because I believe that these hearings are more

         12  productive when government officials like ourselves

         13  and yourselves have to listen to the people most

         14  affected by in this case the policies that you

         15  perpetuate or endorse or support and/or perhaps we

         16  support or also question very often.

         17                 That is neither here nor there. I

         18  understood the Chairman to suggest that we ask you

         19  to stay as your section ends, at least the

         20  appropriate people stay and so it can be done either

         21  way. So, there is nothing terrible about that, but I

         22  happen to think it important.

         23                 Now, having taken care of all of the

         24  housekeeping, let me make just a brief opening

         25  statement.
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          2                 The General Welfare Committee for the

          3  past year and beyond has had numerous oversight

          4  hearings regarding WEP. Not because we are

          5  inherently opposed to this theoretical concept that

          6  someone who receives a public benefit should give

          7  back to society something in return for those

          8  benefits, but because this Administration has

          9  constructed a Work Fare Program that is not

         10  increasing the skill base of the recipients, not

         11  leading to jobs and creating a permanent underclass

         12  of people pushing brooms for a living, replacing

         13  previously well paid public employees. There is no

         14  question that that is what the facts will show, and

         15  there is no evidence to the contrary and you will

         16  not hear any or see any produced because this

         17  program in totality is indefensible.

         18                 We have held a hearing on the fact

         19  that for Home Relief recipients who are trying to

         20  get an education, one of the classic and historical

         21  ways off of welfare are to lift oneself out of

         22  poverty, they are being told they have to quit

         23  school to do workfare. It took us a long time to get

         24  the Administration to agree to be somewhat flexible

         25  in scheduling reduced hours and sites closer to home
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          2  and school and even then they refuse to allow CUNY,

          3  the

          4  City University of New York, to have work sites at

          5  every campus, which would have made the most sense

          6  relying on that historical defense "I went to school

          7  and worked", which is a defense by many in the

          8  Administration.

          9                 Well, I worked and went to school,

         10  and I told this story before, but I lived at home, I

         11  had financial and family support, worked one block

         12  away from my school in a private sector company that

         13  allowed me to work 12 to 15 hours, and every time I

         14  had an exam they gave me off. It was not pushing a

         15  broom for 26 hours in a borough outside my own, that

         16  if I missed one minute or one hour or one day I

         17  would be cut off from the life line of welfare,

         18  assuming I was on welfare at the time, and that is

         19  what I think most people talk about when they say I

         20  worked and went to school. But that is not here nor

         21  there, the fact of the matter is that is what goes

         22  on here.

         23                 In another hearing we heard about

         24  AFDC recipients being called in and assigned to

         25  workfare without regard to their literacy or job
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          2  training needs, even though by law they are supposed

          3  to be referred to training or education needed.

          4                 It is different if you are an AFDC

          5  recipient than if you are a Home Relief recipient,

          6  nonetheless all anecdotal evidence shows they are

          7  treated the same.

          8                 Finally, the fact that the

          9  Administration claims that lower paid WEP workers

         10  are not being used to replace higher paid municipal

         11  workers when the evidence is clear that they are is

         12  wholly indefensible.

         13                 There is no question. Take, for

         14  example, the Department of Parks, and that is what

         15  brings you here, in 1993 you had 1,643 full-time

         16  employees, today you have a reduction of about a

         17  third.

         18                 Meanwhile, during this time, in terms

         19  of the number of WEP workers assigned, it is

         20  increased from a little over 700 to well over 6,000.

         21  There are 6,000 people pushing brooms in your parks

         22  and our parks to keep them clean for no money, while

         23  at the same time your work force is reduced and the

         24  administration continues to reduce support for

         25  public employees.
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          2                 We have focused on broad policy

          3  issues, but I believe that this joint hearing can

          4  take us to the next step, to understand specifically

          5  what is being done.

          6                 The questions, some of which have

          7  started to be asked, and that is not to suggest that

          8  the Parks Department has not made any effort because

          9  you have a program with 22 at last budget hearing

         10  were hired and now it is up to maybe 200 or 300 out

         11  of 7,000. But I can tell you, and you know and I

         12  know that the parks, if we had Sanitation here they

         13  would tell us about 5,000 WEP workers and virtually

         14  none hired or no prospect of being hired, and that

         15  is the norm from agency to agency.

         16                 You cannot go from welfare to work if

         17  there are no jobs. We are shrinking the public

         18  sector and the private sector is itself reorganizing

         19  and reshaping, so there is virtually no hope for

         20  most of the 6,000 to 7,000 people you rely on. That

         21  is the reality and I am here to suggest that unless

         22  you have documentary evidence to the contrary, then

         23  essentially what you are doing is creating a

         24  permanent underclass of people who will never get

         25  employment, you are not unhappy about that because
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          2  the Administration has cut your main budget so far

          3  down that you need the 6,000 WEP workers, and even

          4  then the questions of whether it is legal to replace

          5  public employees, which has not been fully

          6  litigated, whether it is legal to have these WEP

          7  workers doing what they do for working off their

          8  benefits, whether or not they are protected and

          9  given the same equipment and supplies that full-time

         10  parks workers are given, those are real questions

         11  and real issues.

         12                 I believe that this Department,

         13  through no fault of its own perhaps, and I will say

         14  that because I know there is some effort, is an

         15  example, as could be the sanitation if I were doing

         16  it jointly there, although there are not people as

         17  gracious as Wendell to do joint hearings with me

         18  because I get so wrapped up in them, but the fact of

         19  the matter is you are an example of the abysmal

         20  failure of the Giuliani Workfare program.

         21                 And the most frightening thought and

         22  final thought is this: The Mayor, and by extension

         23  his agencies, you at the table, will now follow

         24  through on the rest of the party line which is New

         25  York is ahead of the curve, now that Washington has
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          2  changed welfare as we know it, and insisted that

          3  people go to work, I have heard the Mayor and there

          4  are variations on theme, repeatedly say, we are

          5  ahead of the curve. We are ahead of the curve, the

          6  rest of the country, in creating a permanent

          7  underclass of people pushing brooms. That is about

          8  all we are ahead of the curve on.

          9                 So, with apologies for being late,

         10  and with acknowledgment of the members of my

         11  Committee, Council Members Eldridge, Watkins,

         12  Linares, Koslowitz, Henry, some of whom perhaps

         13  served jointly on Parks, and some of whom have been

         14  here and left because of the nature of the timing

         15  and some will be here before we are done, I will

         16  return the proceedings.

         17                 It is my understanding that we are

         18  going to hear from Mr. Hood, and that you are not

         19  done because members of the joint committees might

         20  have questions and I certainly have a series of

         21  questions as well.

         22                 Having said that, again, my apologies

         23  for being late. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you, Mr.

         25  DiBrienza.
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          2                 I would just like to state that much

          3  of what is written here is contradicted by what Mr.

          4  DiBrienza said. I did ask about whether these people

          5  were replacing permanent workers and you said no.

          6  Therefore, what I would like to do -- where is Mr.

          7  Hood?

          8                 MR. HOOD: Right here.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WENDELL: Commissioner, if

         10  you could, would you just stick around, please,

         11  because as I said previously, I would like to get

         12  someone else at the table and I want you to hear

         13  what they have to say and then come back and address

         14  some of this.

         15                 We are here to try to get the truth

         16  and do something to help the people of the City of

         17  New York.

         18                 Mr. Hood, would you come please and

         19  identify yourself.

         20                 Karen, did you want to ask a

         21  question?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: I just want

         23  to ask, the 7,000 WEP workers, on your clothes

         24  allocation what does each of these people get?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: We
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          2  brought a sample of the outfit they are getting. If

          3  you like, we will show it to you?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: No, I don't

          5  want to see the outfit. What I am saying to you is,

          6  all 7,000 get an outfit of the WEP workers?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Well,

          8  the workers that are in the field, if somebody is in

          9  an office or in an inside environment there is no

         10  necessity to have all of the equipment issued to

         11  them. But those that are in the field, they get a

         12  winter jacket, they get a slicker, they get gloves,

         13  they get boots, they get a jacket and identifying

         14  safety vest, those are routinely distributed.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Everyone

         16  that works outside gets the winter gear, you know,

         17  winter coats --

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: They

         19  should get, they should be --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: And

         21  slickers and everything else?

         22                 I have one more question about the

         23  budget; how much money is allocated for this in the

         24  budget?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Six

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (212) 227-6724

                                                            44

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  million dollars, $6.2 million.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: $6.2

          4  million is allocated for clothing.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Not

          6  just clothing. You want just clothing?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Just for

          8  clothing.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Let me

         10  check on the clothing. Let me see if I have that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: And also

         12  what I would like to ask, do the people get to keep

         13  the clothing, or it is just while they go out?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Some

         15  articles of clothing they keep, they have that they

         16  keep. The gloves I don't think we are taking back.

         17  The winter jacket, that comes back. I believe that

         18  the heavy boots come back.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Well, how

         20  do you determine size for a person? I mean, have you

         21  determined if it is in the winter and you want to

         22  give someone a winter coat, you certainly want it to

         23  fit them, you don't want it to be too big because

         24  then the winter coat is no good because all the cold

         25  air goes into the coat, so how do you fit these
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          2  people for the coats?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Well,

          4  when you order them there is a spread, people who

          5  are experienced in the field know what the spread is

          6  on a group of people. If you have a thousand people,

          7  there are going to be some small, some medium and

          8  some large, and they allocate the numbers that you

          9  are going to need in order to accommodate the group.

         10                 I do have to tell you, though, that

         11  my own experience with the military suggests that

         12  sometimes it wasn't quite as form fitting as we

         13  would like.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Which

         15  really is an injustice to the people.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: No,

         17  this is not an injustice. This is not a Hong Kong

         18  tailor operation. People are given a piece of

         19  clothing that they are able to use and we will fit

         20  them but it is not tailored.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: But we are

         22  talking about human beings that are working

         23  sometimes in very bitter cold weather outside, that

         24  that in itself is hard to handle. Certainly you

         25  would want them to feel that they were warm,
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          2  comfortable. We wouldn't want to send them out and

          3  make them sick.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: The

          5  articles of clothing that we distribute are really

          6  quite adequate, quite good. If you want to take a

          7  look at the winter jacket, you will see that it is a

          8  very, very substantial garment.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Okay. I

         10  look forward to hearing from other people.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: So this

         12  year we are currently going to spend approximately

         13  $81,000 on clothes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: $81,000 on

         15  approximately how many let's say winter coats?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: 7,000?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA:

         18  Currently we have on order with HRA 3,800 coats,

         19  plus in addition to the ones we currently have, as

         20  well, so we have some still from last year. So,

         21  3,800 new ones.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Let me

         24  introduce the next witness, and it is Michael Hood,

         25  President of Local 1505, DC 37.
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          2                 MR. HOOD: Good morning, Councilman,

          3  Chairman Wendell Foster, and Councilman Steve

          4  DiBrienza, and the fellow Council members.

          5                 Since the last time that I testified

          6  there is little evidence so far that workfare leads

          7  to steady jobs. There is a continuing abuse of this

          8  program. The hard-working members that I represent

          9  of Local 1505 have seen WEP numbers go from 3,000 to

         10  approximately 7,000 in the Parks Department.

         11                 City Park workers, or as I refer to

         12  them as complete workers have to usually work

         13  certain special events as a marathon, concert in a

         14  park, are now seeing WEPs being put into their

         15  place.

         16                 It even gets worse than that. WEPs

         17  are being assigned inappropriate duties such as

         18  opening and closing facilities by themselves without

         19  supervision and driving City Park vehicles.

         20                 I believe that HRA has not been doing

         21  a good job of monitoring the parks also where the

         22  program is being run. This continuing abuse of this

         23  program is wasting federal dollars and this

         24  mismanagement has got to stop.

         25                 This is hurting the progress of jobs
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          2  and the stable work force in the

          3  City of New York Parks Department. The WEP program

          4  should be still in pride, I repeat, pride in these

          5  individuals so they know they can receive a

          6  good-paying job and not taken away from the fine

          7  dedicated members of Local 1505, and also by not

          8  reducing the services of the City of New York.

          9                 I want to thank you very much for

         10  your time and also for this invitation.

         11                 Also, if you have any questions, I

         12  would be happy to answer them at this time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I just have a

         14  couple of brief questions. I know that other members

         15  have questions.

         16                 First, before the advent of the

         17  Giuliani Administration's Workfare program, did you

         18  represent workers who cleaned the parks?

         19                 MR. HOOD: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And does that

         21  have a history of year five, ten, 20, 30 years? What

         22  is your sense of that? You may not have been there

         23  the whole time so what is your sense of that?

         24                 MR. HOOD: Well, I know that I started

         25  in Parks in 1985 and at that time I remember that we
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          2  were doing a lot of the cleaning of the facilities,

          3  the pools.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: How about

          5  maintenance, in other words, on an ongoing basis?

          6                 MR. HOOD: Yes, it was a continuous

          7  maintenance operation.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Now, would it

          9  surprise you to learn that the Commissioner's

         10  testimony, and I have looked at part of it,

         11  indicates that through the efforts of WEP

         12  participants City Parks have been made cleaner. In

         13  fact, testimony says that the cleanliness acceptable

         14  rating went up from 70 to 92 percent, and by

         15  implication, since they have over 6,000 workers

         16  cleaning these parks, it would necessarily surprise

         17  you that they get cleaner because they have 6,000

         18  people; is that a fair statement?

         19                 MR. HOOD: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Now, I am not

         21  an expert in this area, but public employees used to

         22  clean and maintain parks, you have less people today

         23  than you had five or six years ago; is that correct?

         24                 MR. HOOD: That is correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: The

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (212) 227-6724

                                                            50

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  Commissioner has an additional 6,000 people at his

          3  disposal -- 7,000 according to the facts, and there

          4  is no surprise that parks are getting cleaner; is

          5  there some way those parks get cleaner other than

          6  those WEP workers doing the work and the jobs of the

          7  former public employees?

          8                 MR. HOOD: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: No, in other

         10  words, is that what they are doing?

         11                 MR. HOOD: Are the --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: WEP workers

         13  doing work that was formerly done by public

         14  employees?

         15                 MR. HOOD: Yes, that is correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I mean, there

         17  is no way the parks get cleaner by some new thing

         18  that they are doing or by some magic. They didn't

         19  discover something new, they are basically out there

         20  sweeping and cleaning and maintaining all the stuff

         21  that sounds like either your workers either used to

         22  do and some maybe still do.

         23                 MR. HOOD: Yes, we continue to still

         24  do their work.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay. I was
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          2  confused a little bit.

          3                 Commissioner, since we are all here

          4  at the table, you take in this section of the

          5  testimony some great pride I guess in talking about

          6  the success of WEP, and I am wondering if you have

          7  any documentary evidence that indicates that other

          8  than having 6,000 to 7,000 people do the job that

          9  was formerly done by public employees, is the basis

         10  of how you get these parks cleaner. Is there

         11  something I am missing?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Well,

         13  the CPWs who are crew chiefs, they get an increase

         14  in salary for the additional supervision.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I see.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: And

         17  we --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Who actually

         19  cleans the parks, sir?

         20                 Who actually cleans the parks? If I

         21  were to go, as I do in my district and drive around

         22  and see people --

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Who

         24  would you see out in the parks?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Yes.
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: You

          3  would see WEP workers, you would see CPWs, you would

          4  see volunteers.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I see.

          6                 And those thousands upon thousands of

          7  WEP workers are doing something new and different

          8  than what public employees are doing that maintain

          9  and clean the parks for years did? I mean, has

         10  something been discovered, or is it just that there

         11  are more of them doing what public employees used to

         12  do?

         13                 I mean, it is certainly not that they

         14  are doing something different, would you agree?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: They

         16  are cleaning up grass, litter.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

         18                 Well, what did the public employees

         19  used to do?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: The

         21  public employees that used to do that are now

         22  supervising these crews, and it also leaves them --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I am asking

         24  what functions did they used to perform when they

         25  were there in the heyday of the Department when you
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          2  have hundreds or even thousands? What did they do?

          3  Did they pick up glass and debris and sweep a park

          4  and clean a hillside? Did they do that kind of

          5  stuff? I think the answer is yes.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I

          7  think the answer is yes but that is only partial.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I see.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: What

         10  they did do also is a measure of repairs.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay. Well, if

         12  it is your testimony that the 6,000 to 7,000 WEP

         13  workers who currently clean the parks in this

         14  system, with virtually no hope of being hired by

         15  either the public or private sector, are not

         16  replacing, not one for one because you have a lot

         17  more at your disposal, but at least in essence you

         18  are not replacing public employees, and I think that

         19  is wholly without credibility and unsubstantiated on

         20  the documentary evidence, because they perform the

         21  same function, you have thousands more than you used

         22  to have, I will admit that, it is not surprising

         23  that the rating goes up, but to suggest in any way,

         24  shape or form that they are not replacing former

         25  public employees, I think is indefensible and on the
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          2  efforts.

          3                 And that is the problem. It is not

          4  your problem per se, but that is the problem with

          5  the program, and I will close with the final part of

          6  your testimony, when you talk about being proud of

          7  the Work Experience program; can you tell me what

          8  exactly is it about 7,000 people pushing brooms

          9  throughout this City with virtually no hope of

         10  finding permanent employment are you proud of as a

         11  Department or as a supporter of the Administration,

         12  since it is the Mayor's program.

         13                 What exactly should we be proud of in

         14  this City?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: That

         16  what we are doing is we are giving people an

         17  opportunity to be able to come in, to be able to

         18  join the Parks Department in an effort to keep our

         19  Parks clean and to have a day where you arrive on

         20  time, you perform service, you leave, there is a

         21  beginning, a middle, an end to the day, and many of

         22  them are learning some basic skills as they go

         23  along.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And they do

         25  what with those -- it is called "world of work
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          2  skills", the Commissioner is not here, but the

          3  Deputy can tell you, the HRA party line is that they

          4  learned a world of work skills.

          5                 Now, let's assume they learned this

          6  world of work skills, what exactly do they do with

          7  them from your experience? Aren't you required to

          8  assist them in getting permanent jobs, keep job

          9  placement data to track exactly what happens to

         10  them? And if so, do you do that? And if not, why

         11  not?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: The

         13  ones that we track are in the PACT program.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Why not all

         15  7,000? It is not your requirement?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: If we

         17  could we would. You know, it would be very nice to

         18  be able to do -- you wonder where people go and what

         19  happens to them.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: So, I am

         21  wondering again the value -- the world of work

         22  skills that you described, what exactly is the value

         23  here of that? It gets what? It does what? What

         24  happens with it?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Well,
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          2  first of all, it sets up a structured day.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: What

          5  it covers is a sequence of work, so that somebody

          6  that comes in and let's say, for example, is doing

          7  some work in one of the parks or one of the

          8  playgrounds and does some simple horticultural work,

          9  you learn which are perennials, which have to be

         10  weeded out, which have to be left, what it means to

         11  be able to aerate the work, aerate the ground.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And what is

         13  the likelihood of after they learn all of that the

         14  Parks Department hiring them because you have an

         15  increase in the number of horticulturists on the

         16  public employee payroll?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:

         18  Whatever the statistics lay out.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: The statistics

         20  show that it is virtually none. You don't have an

         21  increase in that area of budget. We know that

         22  because you get cut every year and the Parks

         23  Committee and the chairman and the members here

         24  always add money so that you can have some public

         25  employees, so that is the point. I don't want to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (212) 227-6724

                                                            57

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  argue with you, you in a representative capacity,

          3  the numbers are incredibly stacked against you.

          4                 I was here the first time you

          5  appeared here when it was 22 people that you were

          6  able to hire, and that is terrific because most

          7  agencies have hired virtually none, and now you are

          8  up to 200 or 300 and that is good and some seasonal

          9  employment. But the issue is not whether you can

         10  make a small effort like that, the issue is what

         11  happens to 7,000 people here and 5,000 in Sanitation

         12  and 3,000 in the next agency and the next agency,

         13  there are somewhere between 35 and 58,000 people

         14  minimally involved in this program now with

         15  virtually no hope of permanent employment which is

         16  theoretically how one goes from welfare to work.

         17                 Now, if one were to say here is the

         18  benefit, you go from welfare to workfare forever and

         19  keep our streets and parks and roads clean at no

         20  pay, just working off your benefit, and admit to

         21  that, then the rest of us could either like or not

         22  like it, as could the citizens. But I think my

         23  problem here is what this is sold as.

         24                 I can keep my personal opinion as to

         25  whether I think permanent, a permanent underclass in
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          2  workfare is good or bad, but my personal opinion

          3  aside, I wonder what the average citizen of this

          4  City would think if they understood that is what is

          5  being created.

          6                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will defer

          7  to second round to get statistical and documentary

          8  evidence of the claim of the 547 participants in

          9  full time and the various breakdowns because it is

         10  in your testimony, but I will defer to second round.

         11  I would like documentary evidence of those claims.

         12                 Council Member Eldridge, Watkins and

         13  Linares.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:

         15  Commissioner, in your testimony you say that from

         16  April of '94 through November 18th, PACT placed 547

         17  participants in full-time jobs for employment.

         18  Eighty-seven were placed at six months seasonal

         19  positions, and you extended 29 of those lines, and

         20  287 participants, PACT participants, found

         21  three-month seasonal positions and then 18 were

         22  hired for three-month seasonal positions elsewhere.

         23                 But that shouldn't be a goal either,

         24  should it? Because a seasonal position means a

         25  seasonal position, you are only hired for a certain

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (212) 227-6724

                                                            59

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  number of months.

          3                 This means that someone who has

          4  invested all this time in the WEP program developed

          5  skills, managed to achieve a certain level,

          6  graduated to your PACT program, is rewarded with a

          7  three-month job, that makes it very difficult and

          8  what is the person expected to do when the seasonal

          9  job is over?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: From

         11  our perspective what we are doing is providing a

         12  vehicle for these people to be able to move from one

         13  level to another. We are not guarantors of

         14  employment. What we tried to do is to work within

         15  the constraints of our agency to be able to give the

         16  best possible --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: You are

         18  receiving I think the brunt of our frustrations

         19  because I agree with you, the responsibility is not

         20  yours, but to bring PACT to us as an example of how

         21  we are really helping people find jobs, I think Mr.

         22  Diamond, and Commissioner of HRA and Mr. Mayor, that

         23  is a most disingenuous thing. A seasonal job is not

         24  a response to someone who goes through a work

         25  employment program and is public assistance. They
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          2  need a full-time job, and that is not -- I think it

          3  is even cruel.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA:  I

          5  would just say in terms of the seasonal jobs, if the

          6  seasonal jobs are there, there are seasonal jobs in

          7  the Parks Department, we would give that person the

          8  ability to go for that job and get it. That is not

          9  the end all be all of the program. That is not what

         10  the intention of the program is.

         11                 Also, we have had situations where we

         12  have heard in the private sector there is some

         13  seasonal job available and we have told people about

         14  that. And what we have also worked out with HRA is

         15  that if someone got a seasonal job with the Parks

         16  Department, that we would get them back on welfare

         17  so they wouldn't lose their welfare benefits and

         18  they would come back.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: That is

         20  great. That is really great.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: And we

         22  did that so they could get a couple of months of

         23  work under their belt.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So we can

         25  even go further and develop our own New York City
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          2  urban migrant workers corps or something, I mean

          3  that is what it begins to sound like.

          4                 I heard today, and I would like to

          5  just add this information to what I have heard

          6  before, that the Parks Department has contracted out

          7  a 10-year contract with the 34th Street Partnership

          8  to maintain the park, Greeley Park and Herald

          9  Square, that is correct?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: With

         11  the 34th Street Business Improvement District?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Yes.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Yes,

         14  there is an agreement that is being --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Now, does

         16  that mean that that gets -- that the workers in

         17  those parks will now be employees of that BID

         18  receiving a regularly hourly wage?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: First

         20  of all, let me just tell you what they are. These

         21  are Herald Square.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: These are

         23  two triangles, yes.

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Two

         25  very small triangles --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Yes, near

          3  Macy*s.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:

          5  Combined they wouldn't be larger than this room. We

          6  have not been maintaining those. Those have been

          7  maintained by the 34th Street BID for the past, I

          8  don't know, four or five years or something like

          9  that, and essentially it is formalizing what has

         10  actually been happening.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So it is

         12  just a formal abdication or recognition that you no

         13  longer maintain those parts.

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: It is

         15  a partnership.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Do you put

         17  money into it or do you put WEP workers into it?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: We

         19  put nothing into it.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Nothing into

         21  it. So then why is it a partnership?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:

         23  Because they are undertaking to put capital funds

         24  into those two squares to soften them and to make

         25  them --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Now, the

          3  Bryant Park BID, the Parks Department gives them an

          4  annual fee to maintain Bryant Park, or you give them

          5  money?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Wait

          7  a minute, are we on Bryant Park?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I am moving.

          9  I am shifting. Bryant Park.

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:

         11  Bryant Park? I am not sure of the agreement. For a

         12  period of time they did receive money from the City,

         13  I think that period is over.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But it was

         15  related to us that this year when the Commissioner

         16  went to a meeting of their board and I think they

         17  usually gave $225,000, the Parks Department, to the

         18  Bryant Park Corporation for the maintenance of that

         19  park, the Commissioner notified them that that

         20  money, or most of that money would not be

         21  forthcoming but made the offer that you would in

         22  fact increase the WEP -- or I don't know if it is

         23  increase or provide WEP workers for the maintenance

         24  of that park.

         25                 Do you provide WEP workers at Bryant
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          2  Park?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Yes,

          4  I am told we do.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: How many do

          6  you provide there?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I

          8  will have to get that. I am sorry, I am just not

          9  familiar with that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Are there

         11  other privately maintained areas that get WEP

         12  workers to maintain them? Could you get us a list if

         13  there are?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: WEP

         15  workers, they are only used on park land, we are not

         16  maintaining anybody else's land nor --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I understand

         18  that. But are there similar arrangements?

         19                 Increasingly I find that other

         20  not-for-profit organizations are assuming

         21  responsibilities for park land, and I am interested

         22  in knowing if there are any other places like Bryant

         23  Park that are benefitting from the use of extra

         24  persons?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I
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          2  don't think so, but I will be glad to look into

          3  that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

          5                 The number of hours in an orientation

          6  for workers?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I

          8  believe that is two days and then it continues in

          9  the field.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: It is two

         11  days, eight hours a day?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I

         13  believe so.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And then at

         15  the same time, how long is the orientation for the

         16  supervisors, or the training for the supervisors? It

         17  is orientation for WEP workers and training for

         18  supervisors.

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:

         20  Training for supervisors is two days.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Two days.

         22                 And the orientation.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: The

         24  orientation period for WEPS, one moment. Three hours

         25  for WEPS.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And then are

          3  there regular training sessions specified for the

          4  supervisors once they have been assigned to

          5  supervisor?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Mr. Hood, when

          7  they are finished, if you want to weigh in on this,

          8  you are welcome to.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: We are

         10  putting together an additional training program for

         11  our WEP supervisors, and that will be at the Omstead

         12  Center. That should probably be a two-day training

         13  program, and we will probably have that with --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Wait a

         15  minute. So, you just said there is already a two-day

         16  training program for supervisors.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: That's

         18  correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Three hours

         20  for WEP workers.

         21                 Once the WEP worker is assigned to

         22  the supervisor, is there further training of the WEP

         23  workers?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: On the

         25  job the trainer would have the WEP worker and he
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          2  would do some training with the WEP worker.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But who is

          4  the trainer on the job? The supervisor?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: The

          6  supervisor, correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: That is the

          8  supervisor and a trainer, it is not an additional

          9  personnel --

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: No, one

         11  in the same. And what I am saying is the WEP

         12  supervisor would also have some additional training

         13  that we are putting together now as well.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But the WEP

         15  workers don't.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Right

         17  now, no.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Can I just

         19  have a clarification?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Oh, I am

         21  sorry. I thought Mr. Hood wanted to weigh in on your

         22  question.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Oh, Mr.

         24  Hood, go ahead.

         25                 MR. HOOD: Go ahead.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: No, Mr.

          3  Hood, finish.

          4                 MR. HOOD: No. I have nothing to

          5  respond at the moment.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Okay.

          7                 A clarification of the coats, when a

          8  WEP worker is assigned to outdoor work, does the WEP

          9  worker wear that home and then wear it back to work

         10  the next day? Or does the WEP worker pick up that

         11  coat in a locker room or a coat room?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: They

         13  wear it on the job, they take it off and then they

         14  go home in their own coat.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So, many

         16  people wear different coats. It doesn't become your

         17  coat with exclusive use, it is just you pick up a

         18  coat when you go into work.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: The

         20  coat would be with the district, you know, with the

         21  District Supervisor.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Right, but

         23  there would be presumably how many? Do you have a

         24  number or a ratio of a number of WEP employees to a

         25  supervisor?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA:

          3  Approximately 15 full-time equivalent people.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Fifteen WEP

          5  workers to one supervisor?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: On a

          7  full-time basis.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But there

          9  may be more than 15 WEP workers to one supervisor.

         10  There may be more than one supervisor with clusters

         11  of WEP workers at a WEP site.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Since

         13  they work around 18 hours, average about 18 hours a

         14  week now, there could be more like 20, 25 that would

         15  ultimately be assigned to a site or to a supervisor.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: How many WEP

         17  workers, to get parochial now, I have a breakdown

         18  for Riverside Park, Central Park from 59th Street to

         19  110th Street is 107 WEP workers, does that sound

         20  right? And Riverside Park from 72nd to 129, 52

         21  workers. You have 52 workers in Riverside Park,

         22  Commissioner Moss, but there happen to be 25 WEP

         23  workers at my favorite site which is the 59th Street

         24  Rec Center; what is that comparison? What are they

         25  doing there, the 25 full-time?
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          2                 Anyway, do you offer your WEP

          3  employees -- you train them but none of them are

          4  able to go beyond a GED program, the WEP employees

          5  who are trainees -- are these trainees in the PACT

          6  program?

          7                 In the testimony you say in return

          8  for the commitment trainees may pursue

          9  employment-related services.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Those

         11  are trainees that go into the PACT program.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: They aren't

         13  at school at the same time. They can go to GED

         14  classes but they don't go to colleges; is that right

         15  or not?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLO: Usually

         17  if they are in the PACT program they are not in

         18  college at the same time.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Council

         20  Member, you need to wrap up.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So they are

         22  not eligible either if they were swimmers to be

         23  lifeguards? Commissioner?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I am

         25  sorry?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Lifeguards?

          3  Can they be -- since they can get free regular and

          4  commercial driver training and licensing, can they

          5  get training to become lifeguards?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:

          7  Surely.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Do they?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Our

         10  notices are going out now for the canvassing for

         11  lifeguards, and that group will be canvassed,

         12  absolutely. And if they can develop the skill and

         13  work, they can join the Lifeguard Corps, which is a

         14   --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I would like

         16  to see how many are successful. It would be

         17  interesting to know if any are successful a year

         18  from now.

         19                 Council Member Watkins.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And we have

         22  been joined by Council Members Clarke and Duane. We

         23  are going to come straight around through the

         24  members if they have questions on the first round.

         25  We are going to introduce three more witnesses who
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          2  are just going to keep adding to the table and then

          3  try to do a second round, and hopefully then all of

          4  you will be done and then there is some additional

          5  witnesses.

          6                 Council Member Watkins.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Thank you.

          8                 Commissioner, with the commercial

          9  driver training and the first aid certification and

         10  so on, have you had any WEP workers who have gone on

         11  to jobs other than Park Department's, but permanent

         12  jobs as commercial drivers or in some kind of a

         13  first aid situation?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: We

         15  would have to take a look. That is something that we

         16  would have to look at and see where they wound up

         17  and skills they are using. And if they go on to

         18  other jobs, whether that involves the commercial

         19  drivers license or not, I am not certain at this

         20  point.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Well, if I

         22  might ask, what is the purpose of providing them

         23  with the training for certification and first aid

         24  and/or drivers license?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Well,
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          2  because a commercial drivers licence is very often a

          3  requisite of employment.

          4                 For instance, at the Parks

          5  Department, in order to become an APS, one of a

          6  certain class of employment --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Can you pull

          8  that microphone closer, please?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: In

         10  order to qualify for a certain class of employment

         11  at Parks, you would have to have a commercial

         12  driver's license, in order to go to work for a

         13  number of --

         14                 Although, a maintenance, although it

         15  may not be the most essential thing for the job,

         16  they do require that the employees have a commercial

         17  drivers license. It is just a very good thing to

         18  have in the job market.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Is there

         20  anyone or a group of persons within the Parks

         21  Department that actively works with seeking

         22  employment for WEP workers, like a mini employment

         23  agency within the Department?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Yes,

         25  there is. There is a group within PACT that does
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          2  that. There are counselors and they reach out to the

          3  private sector and try to make a match.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Have you had

          5  much success in the private sector?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: From

          7  our perspective, yes, I think that we have been

          8  successful.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: What kind of

         10  numbers or percentages are we talking about?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA:

         12  Currently, since the start of the program we have

         13  565 people placed in private sector and park jobs.

         14  Most of those are full time jobs, there are some

         15  six-month jobs in there.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Well, Parks

         17  jobs, you gave us a number of what was it?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Why don't you

         19  clearly give her the breakdown.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: At 287 parks

         21  jobs --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: So that way it

         23  is covered for all of us.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: So the others

         25  would be about 250, 240 of private sector jobs?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: No. The

          3  number I am giving you are full-time jobs and

          4  six-month jobs, the 565. And the number, I don't

          5  have it right here, but the number that are

          6  parks-related on that 565 number is not that much. I

          7  mean, there are other seasonal jobs that are

          8  parks-related, and those seasonal jobs, most of them

          9  are park seasonal jobs.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: All right.

         11  The seasonal jobs that we are talking about, are

         12  those jobs that used to be filled primarily by

         13  students?

         14                 Nobody knows?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:

         16  Seasonal jobs typically at Parks are filled by a

         17  broad spectrum of people. Some of them are students,

         18  some of them are people who from year to year come

         19  back, some of them can be teachers.

         20                 For example, in the lifeguards, many

         21  of the lifeguards are teachers and they come --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Let's exclude

         23  lifeguards because that is very specific.

         24                 I remember as far back, light-years

         25  ago when I was a student, Parks' jobs were one of
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          2  the places that one went to look for employment

          3  during the summer. So, I don't know why it seems

          4  everybody has a blank look when I say seasonal jobs

          5  filled by students. I remember when I was looking to

          6  place students who would come to my office, Parks

          7  was one of the places that we sent them.

          8                 My question is very simple: Are the

          9  seasonal jobs that the WEP workers are going to now

         10  jobs that were traditionally and historically jobs

         11  that were filled by students, upper level high

         12  school and certainly college level students.

         13                 I doubt that I am the only one in

         14  this room around this table who has had that

         15  experience.

         16                 Mr. Hood.

         17                 MR. HOOD: Yes. I would just say that

         18  from speaking to the members that I represent, it

         19  seems to be that their lines have reduced and WEP

         20  workers have come on seasonal jobs. This is from my

         21  records.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Okay.

         23                 Let me ask you about, and maybe Mr.

         24  Hood would know if the Commissioner and the staff

         25  does not, what are we talking about as far as entry
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          2  level salary and benefits packages for Park

          3  employees, civil service workers?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Are

          5  you talking about seasonal or are you talking about

          6  Parks full-time positions?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: How about

          8  let's take both.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Well,

         10  let's see, a lifeguard would be making eight dollars

         11  to start off, eight and change?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Yes. A

         13  seasonal worker would be getting approximately about

         14  17 to 18,000 dollars a year. A full-time City park

         15  worker, I believe it is around $22,000 a year.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Okay. Plus

         17  benefits for the full-time worker.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Yes.

         19  Gets the full City package of benefits, correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: For the WEP

         21  workers who are doing essentially the same thing as

         22  has been ascertained in previous testimony, what

         23  kind of benefits and dollars are they receiving?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: The WEP

         25  workers work a number of hours correlated to the
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          2  size of their public assistance grant and their food

          3  stamp allotment. So, a typical grant would be about

          4  $350 a month, and then 125 or so of food stamps.

          5  That is the basis for which we calculate the number

          6  of hours.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: You mean they

          8  work that off by calculating that total amount of

          9  money divided by the minimum wage, although not

         10  legally required to use the minimum wage, and then

         11  you calculate how many hours they owe you. They get

         12  no actual money.

         13                 We know the answer, but let's be

         14  clear on the record. You start with the value of

         15  their grant, you divide it by the minimum wage,

         16  which is your choice, and you come up with an

         17  equation of how many hours they owe you.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: They

         19  work off their grant and they also receive Medicaid

         20  benefits and transportation and child care, if that

         21  is appropriate, which we don't require them --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Well, let's

         23  not talk about Medicaid because if you are civil

         24  service worker you get a medical package. But based

         25  on what you just said to me, it is the maximum of
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          2  about $400 a month, which would be the equivalent of

          3  $4,800 annually; is that what we are saying?

          4  Including food stamps and whatever allocation this

          5  person is receiving for a family?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Their

          7  cash grant would be somewhere in that range, a

          8  little more I think, yes. Annually.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: What are we

         10  talking about as far as the entry level positions

         11  into the private sector? What kind of dollars are

         12  these people going in starting at?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLO:

         14  Anywhere from $7 an hour, it has gone up to $17

         15  which is one of the highest.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS:  Do you have

         17  an average?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Mr. Chair,

         19  could you ask them to speak into the mike, it's hard

         20  to hear.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLO: Right.

         22                 I said $7 an hour and as high as $17

         23  an hour, and I said I didn't have the average here.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: I would

         25  appreciate your getting that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Council Member,

          3  he has promised to send us copies of where these

          4  people are working and how many are employed, et

          5  cetera.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: It will be shared

          8  with all of us.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Thank you.

         10                 Just listening to the testimony that

         11  was given previously about the type of work that the

         12  WEP workers are doing as compared to the type of

         13  work which the civil service workers are doing, with

         14  the exception of the supervisors, it seems to be

         15  essentially the same tasks, have I understood that

         16  correctly?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: No,

         18  it is not the same task. City Park workers are doing

         19  a whole variety of repairs above and beyond any

         20  cleaning work that they do, whereas the WEP workers

         21  are doing basically cleaning work, cleaning

         22  services.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Are

         24  you testifying, is your testimony that all civil

         25  service full-time park employees do repairs in

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (212) 227-6724

                                                            81

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  addition to cleaning?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Their

          4  job specifications --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Let's talk --

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Wait

          7  a minute.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Let's talk

          9  what we do.

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Like

         11  in any other group there is a mix. There may be some

         12  that are doing cleaning, there may be some that are

         13  doing all repairs. But the job specifications of a

         14  City Park worker are much broader and cover much

         15  greater territory than that which is required of a

         16  WEP.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Commissioner,

         18  let's go back.

         19                 We are talking tasks, not job

         20  description, we are talking tasks. And I might add

         21  just for the record so that you and I are on the

         22  same page, I do understand the question I am asking

         23  and what I am describing, I spent seven years as a

         24  civil service commissioner for the City of New York.

         25                 So, now, tasks, do you have civil
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          2  service employees in the Parks Department who do

          3  only cleaning?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I am

          5  sure there are.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: And those are

          7  the people who are making something, I think it was

          8  about 21,000, 22,000 a year at entry level; am I

          9  correct?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I

         11  would have to assume that you are correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: I am dealing

         13  with testimony.

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: You

         15  have far more experience in the personnel field,

         16  probably more than even I have.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: I probably

         18  do, but that is not what I am basing it on. I am

         19  basing it on testimony that took place within the

         20  last 20 to 30 minutes. I do remember asking about

         21  seasonal employees and full-time. If I remember the

         22  seasonal employees start at 17,000 or 18,000 per

         23  year.

         24                 Somebody said that. Did I hear

         25  correctly? Is that correct? Anybody?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Speak into the

          3  mikes and answer the question. That is how it works,

          4  we ask questions, you answer them. What is the

          5  surprise here?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Is that

          7  correct?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Answer the

          9  Council Member, please.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLO: Yes,

         11  that is correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Okay.

         13                 Let's go to the seasonal employees.

         14  Do the seasonal employees who make 17,000 or 18,000

         15  for starting, are there some of those employees who

         16  do only cleaning?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLO: I

         18  don't know of any specific case, but we would have

         19  to assume that there are those that would do only

         20  cleaning.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Okay.

         22                 So then just based on what we have

         23  heard today, we are looking on one hand at the

         24  probability, the overwhelming probability, that

         25  there are civil service workers and seasonal workers

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (212) 227-6724

                                                            84

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  in the Parks Department who are making anywhere from

          3  17 to 22,000 at entry level to do essentially the

          4  very same tasks that the City is now forcing WEP

          5  workers to do for $4,800 a year with very little

          6  probability of moving into those full time jobs.

          7                 Could we say that that describes the

          8  picture?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well, I

         10  think that you have to take a couple of factors into

         11  account.

         12                 First, the WEP workers do not work

         13  full time so that you can't equate exactly the

         14  salary. Even they work an average, the testimony

         15  before was about 18 and a half hours, which is about

         16  half the amount of time that a City Parks worker

         17  works.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Well, the way

         19  I figure it very quickly, half of 17 is 8,500, half

         20  of 18 is 9,000, half of 22 is 11,000, and 4,800 has

         21  moved.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Right.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: All right.

         24                 So, we are still talking about a

         25  great disparity between.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: It is

          3  also when we add in the benefits, including the

          4  transportation, it is higher than 4,800.

          5                 Also, if you want to get technical,

          6  that money is not taxed where the other money is

          7  taxed.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Well, if we

          9  add in the benefits, the benefits package that you

         10  and I get, that is a lot more than our salary is on

         11  paper also, isn't it?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: But the

         13  child care and the car fare allowance are not part

         14  of the money that we talked about.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Well, first

         16  of all, not all WEP workers have children.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: That is

         18  correct, yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: All right?

         20  So, let's wipe that out, okay?

         21                 As far as car fare is concerned,

         22  let's see if we were to talk some of the City

         23  workers and Council members are not included in this

         24  group who get cars and who get gas allowances from

         25  the City of New York and that is not included. And I
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          2  know that there are Parks Department employees who

          3  have vehicles.

          4                 So, when you tell me car fare, that

          5  doesn't count. Let's look at dollars. We are looking

          6  $8,000, $8,500 minimally for part-time, against

          7  $4,800.

          8                 I only say to you this, if we look at

          9  the tasks, if we look at the reimbursement, if we

         10  look at what people are given for those tasks and if

         11  we look at 562, we are looking at less than 600 job

         12  placements out of 7,000 people, which is, if my math

         13  is correct less than one percent, right?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: The

         16  probability of moving into the real world of

         17  permanent work is poor, the reimbursement is less

         18  than 50 percent of what other people are getting to

         19  do the same tasks, so my question is then, how can

         20  we sit here and talk about a sense of dignity for

         21  doing some work?  How can we sit here and talk about

         22  we are preparing people with a structured day --

         23  because I haven't read anyplace that there was

         24  actual anything, documentation that says

         25  unstructured days was putting people on welfare. It
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          2  was lack of employment.

          3                 I would hope that you could at least

          4  take a look at the facts as you have presented them

          5  and see that we have a real serious problem. And as

          6  my colleague said, if we would tell the truth and

          7  say that we are just asking people to work off the

          8  small goal that we are giving them and that we are

          9  also asking them to replace civil service workers

         10  who are sometimes being forced into an unfair

         11  buy-out, some of those same people who then apply

         12  within two years to the same welfare centers to ask

         13  for food stamps, I think that it is only fair that

         14  whatever it is we are doing we be honest about it

         15  and take a look at the facts.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you,

         17  Council Member.

         18                 Council Member Linares has some

         19  questions, then we are going to ask you just to move

         20  over, we are going to add some witnesses, and then

         21  continue the questions.

         22                 Council Member Linares.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chair.

         25                 I think a lot of the questions have
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          2  been really brought to the surface in terms of what

          3  in reality this program is.  One thing is what we

          4  wish it were, but another thing is in reality what

          5  it is. And I think what the argument is, let's call

          6  it what it is and no more than that, and what it is

          7  is that if you receive public assistance and you are

          8  able to work, even though we have no employment, if

          9  you are to receive that check, either the $150 or

         10  the $125 every month, you must comply with certain

         11  requirements, and that is to work.

         12                 That is a reality and that is the

         13  extent of it, and whatever agency receives these

         14  workers, they do the best that they can under the

         15  circumstances and limitations that they have. I

         16  think that those are the parameters for this

         17  particular department.

         18                 I have one question. How are the

         19  workers that come to you designated? Who does that

         20  and how is the decision for them to come to you

         21  rather than sanitation or other agencies?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: The Deputy

         23  from HRA can answer that.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: The

         25  Office of Employment Services within the Human
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          2  Resources Administration conducts an interview with

          3  people who have received a letter requiring them to

          4  come in for an employment interview and assessment,

          5  and then based on the results of that interview

          6  certain questions are asked and depending on the

          7  different agency needs there is a match made.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Can you

          9  describe the assessment?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: We ask

         11  some basic background questions about previous

         12  employment history, previous skills, interests,

         13  abilities, any particular health conditions.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: How about

         15  education?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND:

         17  Education absolutely. Any particular physical

         18  limitations which would call for a certain

         19  assignment, and then we try and make a match between

         20  an agency's needs and the participant's abilities

         21  and skills.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Can you

         23  describe for us what is the roster of possible

         24  placement or experiences to which you can assign

         25  based on this assessment?
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          2                 I assume that you ask about

          3  educational levels and work experience because you

          4  have a roster of experiences that you may want to

          5  tailor them to, can you explain what that roster is?

          6                 Because let me tell you, it will be

          7  very helpful to you, because the impression in the

          8  public and among us is that you only have one

          9  assignment for people, whether they go to Parks,

         10  whether they go to Sanitation or any other agencies,

         11  they clean. They clean walls, they pick up garbage,

         12  and that seems to be one criteria and one

         13  assignment.

         14                 Now, it would be very helpful to you

         15  if you could illustrate how you select and you

         16  distribute the workers based on that assessment that

         17  you are now describing.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: We have

         19  large programs at several of the City agencies, the

         20  Parks Department, the Sanitation Department we had

         21  spoken of before also, we also have large programs,

         22  though, at the Housing Authority, the Board of

         23  Education, the Health and Hospitals Corporation,

         24  DFTA and many other agencies and we try and, as I

         25  said, make a match of the needs of the agencies and
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          2  the participant's abilities. When participants were

          3  also assigned to agencies, the agencies themselves

          4  had different needs, they don't use all the people

          5  for one task, so then they do some more refinements,

          6  and more interviewing and assignment based on their

          7  own needs. So, it is a two-step process which,

          8  again, tends to match the needs of the City agencies

          9  with the participant's abilities and skills.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: May I

         11  interject?

         12                 So, in the Parks Department, when

         13  they send you 7,000 people every single one of them

         14  clean, correct? They do cleaning work; is that

         15  correct, sir?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Some

         17  form of cleaning.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right. So,

         19  Commissioner, the point being, since the Councilman

         20  has asked, I guess there is no one that maybe has

         21  skills other than cleaning, like maintenance,

         22  carpentry, repair, administrative, et cetera, that

         23  you could give to the Parks Department so they might

         24  be able to use them other than cleaning. And if the

         25  Sanitation Commissioner were here, in answer to the
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          2  question  he would be told they have 5,000 workers,

          3  and we would ask them what are they doing - they are

          4  all sweeping the streets.

          5                 I mean, this is the import of the

          6  question. Your reality and your rhetoric do not

          7  match.

          8

          9  Councilman, I am sorry.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: That's all

         11  right.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Let me

         13  just add to that. If someone comes in and we find

         14  out they have some administrative skills or they can

         15  work a computer or they have got some kind of

         16  ability like that, we would then place them in an

         17  administrative office. We have done that at times,

         18  receptionists, answer phones, get them into a thing

         19  where they can use a computer or learn about it. We

         20  have done that. It is not a big situation but it has

         21  happened.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Council Member

         23  Linares, just let me follow up.

         24                 What you are saying is, all right, I

         25  fall on hard times, I have a skill, I am highly
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          2  trained. It just so happens that I lost my job. If I

          3  come to you and give you my resume, do you require a

          4  resume or find out what my skills are before you

          5  send me to wash?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Well,

          7  let me answer. When it comes to the Parks

          8  Department, we had a situation where one person was

          9  an architect and what we did is we had him

         10  interviewed and we had him interviewed at capital

         11  and we would have somebody like that working our

         12  capital division, if they came on hard times.

         13                 We also, if people have had college

         14  experience or at the interviews when they come in

         15  for the orientation, we would talk to them and we

         16  would bring them into another situation if they want

         17  to do that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: So, in other

         19  words, you do investigate the person's background

         20  and see if they are skilled in something?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Yes.

         22                 Also, at the orientations we tell

         23  them about the PACT program, if anyone wants to

         24  volunteer to go into that program we do tell them

         25  about that as well.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Excuse me, Mr.

          3  Linares, I am finished.

          4                 I just want to say to all of those

          5  people who came to testify, we will stay with you

          6  here all night with you to hear you because what you

          7  have to say must be heard.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 All right, Mr. Linares.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: I think what

         11  I was leading to was that you probably are within

         12  the parameters of what you can do and what you have

         13  available, you are probably doing things that would

         14  help at least in explaining that there are a certain

         15  percentage of the people that come in that you do

         16  assess and also place them in the type of

         17  experience, work experience that is relevant to the

         18  background and the experience and the educational

         19  levels that they have.

         20                 If you ask me, my sense is that that

         21  is very much discarded. The only thing that it

         22  appears that matters to this program is that if you

         23  get a check, in order for you to get that check you

         24  have to work X number of hours, and what I am saying

         25  is, it is a disservice and it would be a waste if
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          2  you did not do and document the percentages of

          3  people that you assess based on those criterias that

          4  you mentioned, and then you place in an appropriate

          5  setting so that it is a minimum, a meaningful

          6  experience with some relevance, and even with the

          7  limitations that we understand exist within this

          8  program.

          9                 That is why I was asking the

         10  question, because right now I am going to tell you

         11  point blank, the impression is, and the reality for

         12  the people who participate in this program, is that

         13  if they do not comply with the number of hours that

         14  they have to work and participate, they will not get

         15  that check in order for them to cope and survive.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you,

         17  Council Member.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: I was just

         19  also curious about the gender composition of the

         20  workers, how many males, how many female do you have

         21  in your programs. And whether there is any

         22  difference in terms of gender or does it play any

         23  role in terms of how you assign the participants or

         24  not, I am just curious about that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: How many
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          2  males, how many females? Let's start with that?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: We

          4  would have to get the exact breakdown, but there is

          5  a --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Commissioner,

          7  you are here on a hearing about WEP workers. How

          8  many people are here from the Parks Department? With

          9  little name tags on there, raise your hands. There

         10  are about 40 people here, nobody knows how many men

         11  and how many women?

         12                 Why? You are here at a City Council

         13  hearing with advance notice and it is about WEP.

         14  This is what I tell everybody, you entire

         15  administration takes these things too lightly. That

         16  is a basic question the Council Member asked, how

         17  many men; how many women? There is no one in your

         18  entire staff that can answer that question right

         19  now?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA:

         21  Councilman, mostly male, I would say. I do not have

         22  the exact numbers.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Give me an

         24  approximation.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: I would
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          2  say probably about 75 percent and maybe more.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay. Now the

          4  second part of the question. Male versus female

          5  assignments; is there a differentiation in the type

          6  of assignment? Just I mean we could get out of here

          7  faster if we could answer the questions.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: I don't

          9  believe there is any difference in differentiation

         10  in terms of assignment. Clearly, if someone can't

         11  handle, it is too much lifting or something like

         12  that, the supervisor would take that into account at

         13  a local level.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you.

         15                 Thank you, Council Member.

         16                 Now, we are going to do a couple of

         17  things. First, Mr. Hood, see that chair on the edge?

         18  Would you move it to the side. Sergeant, move it so

         19  it is facing on the side, and Mr. Hood, take that

         20  seat, okay?

         21                 MR. HOOD: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: But face us,

         23  you are still a witness. Just swing him around,

         24  Sergeant. Right there against our table. It is all

         25  right, he will have a mike and everything, it will
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          2  work. We will bend the rules a little.

          3                 Commissioner, if you would move down

          4  with your Parks Department person, we would

          5  appreciate it. Leave the mike behind.

          6                 Mr. Diamond, you be right in the

          7  middle because you are HRA.

          8                 Sergeant, add me two chairs coming

          9  around to that one vacant one, plus two chairs and

         10  then we will have the additional three.

         11                 Now, let us finish this.

         12  Commissioner, you have a few more questions with

         13  Council Member Duane and myself and we will finish

         14  up. So, if you will just bear with us, okay?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I

         16  would very much like to finish up.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: We are going

         18  to finish up, just bear with us, okay?

         19                 Now, there are three areas that I

         20  have left, I am just going to list them. Council

         21  Member Duane has some as well and he has not spoken

         22  yet today. I am just going to tell you where -- I am

         23  going to be last, I am just going to outline them,

         24  introduce the people and turn it over to Council

         25  Member Duane, okay?
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          2                 First, the entire section on the

          3  number of participants in full-time work. First, for

          4  the record, if in fact you had 700 people

          5  cumulatively, that would be just shy of ten percent

          6  of 7,000. However, frozen in time you would still

          7  have 7,000 WEP workers and clearly the 600 or 700 is

          8  cumulative so we can't do the percentage. The

          9  Council Member mentioned one percent, I want the

         10  record to be clear, it is not one percent, nor is it

         11  ten percent because you have 7,000 workers as we sit

         12  here today, 6,000 or 7,000 and only over two and a

         13  half years have you placed allegedly up to 600 and

         14  change.

         15                 Secondly, all this whole paragraph

         16  and your answers to those questions, it is

         17  gobbly-gook. 547 but 87 at six months, some of them

         18  went longer, but 460 as full-time, but 287 -- in

         19  fact, none of the numbers add up so we are going to

         20  before we leave today go through these numbers one

         21  more time. So, that is point number one what you

         22  have to do.

         23                 Point number two, the notion that you

         24  have people who do work full time cleaning or don't

         25  work full time cleaning, for all intents and
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          2  purposes somewhat irrelevant. The question isn't

          3  whether WEP workers do exactly the same as what your

          4  current Park workers do, the question is whether WEP

          5  workers today in '94, '95 and '96 do what Park

          6  workers used to do historically. So we are going to

          7  go through that one last time.

          8                 And lastly this PACT program. You

          9  take great pride in the program and we have already

         10  heard from HRA how they calculate the required

         11  hours. I understand PACT requires 35 hours, so that

         12  people are working well beyond working off their

         13  benefits, if you factor in minimum wage it is

         14  probably illegal, despite what will be your defense

         15  of it that it is voluntary. People volunteer to work

         16  for two cents or so, whatever the math comes out to

         17  an hour, in contradiction to minimum wage laws and

         18  without any kind of guarantee of work.

         19                 So, those are the three areas we have

         20  left to go to.

         21                 Now, Council Member Duane has some

         22  questions and then we are going to hear from Bruce

         23  Carson, Ralph Tricoche and Patricia Holley, but

         24  Council Member Duane has some questions for you

         25  first.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Only PACT

          3  members are entitled to get driver's lessons,

          4  regular and commercial?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: The

          6  driver training, yes. They would be the ones

          7  qualified.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Only PACT.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Only

         10  PACT, yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: And how many

         12  PACT workers in '96, in '95 and '96 received regular

         13  and commercial training, and how many do you

         14  envision in '97 and how many actually received their

         15  licenses?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: I would

         17  have to get you that information, Councilman. I

         18  don't have it available.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: I am just

         20  shocked.

         21                 How many received First Aid

         22  certification in '95/'96, how many anticipated it in

         23   '97?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: I don't

         25  have that with me either. I will get you a copy of
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          2  that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: I am surprised

          4  you put it in your testimony at all if you didn't

          5  know the answers to this.

          6                 Approximately how many? Like 200 out

          7  of 269? Two out of 269?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: I don't

          9  know.

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:

         11  Rather than guess, we will supply you that

         12  information.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Guess. Because

         14  I mean you are in charge of it so just guess.

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I

         16  would rather give you the number.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Guess.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: No, I

         19  don't want to guess.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: What about one

         21  of the people who work for you?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: We

         23  won't guess, we will give you the number.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: By when?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: We
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          2  will supply you the number before the day is out.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: By the end of

          4  today?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:

          6  Surely.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Okay.

          8                 I want to know then, how many people

          9  have in '95/'96 anticipated in '97 go to GED

         10  classes, and how many of them have gotten their

         11  GEDs?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: We will

         13  have to get you the information on that as well.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Okay. Where are

         15  the classes held?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: I am

         17  not sure on that, where they are held right now.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: You don't know

         19  where they are?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: We may

         21  do some of the training ourselves and --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Well, no, you

         23  said they are sponsored by the Board of Education.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: We may

         25  be sending them to the Board of Education.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: I can't hear

          3  you, I am sorry.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: We may

          5  be sending them to the Board of Education, I will

          6  get that information for you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: It says they

          8  are sponsored by the Board of Education, where are

          9  those sites?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: I will

         11  get that for you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: How many are

         13  there?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: I will

         15  get that for you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Who do you

         17  think, you know, you are appearing before? You are

         18  appearing before the New York City Council, two

         19  committees on a hearing on WEP workers and you don't

         20  have basic information at your fingertips. Why do

         21  you not prepare for these hearings? I mean, what is

         22  the answer to that question? Why do you not prepare?

         23                 Why do you have to come in here and

         24  say we will get that for you? Do you understand how

         25  this works? Go home and read the Charter. This is
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          2  our job. We get elected to do this. You think the

          3  only bully in town is the Mayor?

          4                 You come here, you are supposed to be

          5  able to answer the questions. Whether we agree or

          6  not, it is obvious we don't agree on much, but I

          7  tell this story all the time, it doesn't matter

          8  whether we agree, you still have to answer the

          9  questions. You believe what you are doing, you

         10  believe in it, then defend it.

         11                 I personally think you are defending

         12  the indefensible. I mean, that is just my position.

         13  You know, that is why I don't totally hold it

         14  against any of you because the Parks Department does

         15  a lot of wonderful things and there are a lot of

         16  great parks and there are a lot of good programs and

         17  there are a lot of good people, and I think you are

         18  in an unenviable position defending the

         19  indefensible. Nonetheless, that is what you get paid

         20  to do, so you should be able to answer the

         21  questions, and then we will disagree or not and the

         22  world will judge who is right.

         23                 Sorry, Council Member. Anything else

         24  that they might be able to answer?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Well, I just
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          2  want to get the questions, whether we can get the

          3  answers.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: All right.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: How many PACT

          6  workers in '95, '96, '97, and I will stop saying

          7  that, but just assume what it was in '95, what it is

          8  in '96, what it is anticipated to be in '97 served

          9  as Parks supervisors? Did any of them become

         10  supervisors of other Parks employees or WEP

         11  employees? I think they do, yes?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: We

         13  think three people became WEP crew chiefs.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: And they are

         15  all PACT people?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: And how many

         18  Parks Department employees in '96, '96 and '97 are

         19  trainers of PACT people, PACT workers?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Did you

         21  say PACT employees that became trainers? Is that the

         22  question?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Do PACT

         24  employees become trainers.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: No,
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          2  they don't.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: How many Parks

          4  Department employees are trainers of PACT workers?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: It is

          6  about 20 employees.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: And they are

          8  full-time trainers of PACT workers?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Yes.

         10  That is an estimate, the 20.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: In '96 it is

         12  20, what was it in '95? And what do you envision it

         13  to be in '97?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: I would

         15  have to go back to what it was in '95 and '97 I can

         16  get you a number.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Okay.

         18                 And what is their title within the

         19  Parks Department of the trainers?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: The

         21  trainers are usually associate park service workers,

         22  and that is what their title is generally.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: And may I also

         24  have the breakdown of those trainers of PACT workers

         25  in the field that they are doing? You listed

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (212) 227-6724

                                                            108

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  security construction, computer installation and

          3  support and horticulture. If you would break down

          4  those 20, how they are employed in those training

          5  for the three years.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Okay.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: How many Parks

          8  Department employees are full placement, full-time

          9  placement specialists and how many are part-time

         10  placement specialists, and the breakdown for the

         11  three years, please. Do you know that?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Yes. In

         13  terms of full-time placement people, we have

         14  approximately four who work full-time and one is

         15  part-time.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: And they are

         17  specialists and counselors, it is one job

         18  description?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Those

         20  are the people who do placements. There are also

         21  counselors as well.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: How many

         23  counselors?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA:

         25  Approximately I believe around five or six
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          2  counselors. I can get you all of that information.

          3  We have that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: And where are

          5  they located?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: They

          7  are located at 16 West 61st Street. That is where

          8  the offices are.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: For the whole

         10  City?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: That is

         12  correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: And if you are

         14  a WEP worker or a PACT worker -- this is only for

         15  PACT? If you are PACT you are entitled to a

         16  placement counselor; is that correct?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: That is

         18  correct.

         19                 Let me just say, that is where the

         20  offices are. The people go out, the counselors go

         21  out and meet with the PACT people in the boroughs

         22  and they have borough places that they do that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: So there is

         24  satellite offices in each of the boroughs?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: They
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          2  meet in different areas in the boroughs. It is not a

          3  specific office that I know of but they do meet.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Well, how does

          5  the PACT worker know where to go to meet their

          6  placement specialist?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Well,

          8  they would have a meeting place and I can get you

          9  where those meeting places are.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: And how much

         11  time is each PACT employee entitled to from a

         12  specialist and how much time is a PACT employee

         13  entitled to from a counselor?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: In

         15  terms of the counselor it is minimally one day a

         16  week and in terms of going out on job interviews, et

         17  cetera, that can vary.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: You mean each

         19  PACT employee gets to spend a whole one of their

         20  work days the entire time with a counselor?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Usually

         22  it is in a group. They meet as a group.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: How many people

         24  in a group?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: I would
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          2  estimate approximately around 15.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: And is that

          4  time counted toward their work or is it something

          5  that they do in addition to their work?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: That is

          7  just part of their time.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: It is just time

          9  served.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: I actually have

         12  more.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Well, we will

         14  put you on the second round.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: But my

         16  questions are excellent.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And you are

         18  the only one left asking, so we will resume with

         19  you. You sounded like you needed a minute, that's

         20  why.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Can I just go

         22  on a little bit longer? I haven't really gone on

         23  that long.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Can we

         25  become an informal roundtable? We have a lot of
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          2  people here.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: No, we haven't

          4  become that informal.

          5                 Council Member, we will return with

          6  you. Hold the thoughts for one minute and regroup

          7  your questions.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: They are

          9  grouped. I had a lot of time listening to everyone

         10  else's to group my questions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I said you

         12  have been more efficient than all of us.

         13                 All right.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: They are not

         15  going away, right?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Commissioner,

         17  if the three of you would step back to the first row

         18  or what have you, Council Member Duane has to

         19  finish, Council Member Clarke has a question, I

         20  would like to know whether or not you hired that

         21  architect, that is an additional loose end, we want

         22  the record to be clear. So, if you would step back

         23  for a moment we are going to hear without questions

         24  some testimony.

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Well,
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          2  are you finished with us at this point?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: No. We are

          4  finished at this point, we are not finished.

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Well,

          6  we want to go. We will leave somebody here to audit

          7   --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Commissioner,

          9  just let me say this. I have said this over and over

         10  again and I said it to Commissioner Stern, you will

         11  come here with a number of workers, 90 percent of

         12  our questions you don't have answers to, you always

         13  say you will get back to us, therefore we have to

         14  submit to you in writing the questions you weren't

         15  able to answer. You take up so much time without

         16  answering the questions, and now the people that

         17  came here to say that you are not treating them

         18  fairly, you are not going to be able to hear them.

         19                 Now, it is only fair that if they are

         20  going to accuse you, you need to be here to defend

         21  yourself. These people, many of them feel like urban

         22  slaves. It is not fair for us to do this to human

         23  beings in this day and age.

         24                 We notified your office weeks ago of

         25  this hearing. I hope you understand what I am
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          2  saying. I know you want to go and you have other

          3  appointments, but there are certain times we need,

          4  you need and I will say this to Commissioner Stern

          5  as well, allocate time for a full hearing. We have

          6  never held a full hearing on any Parks Committee

          7  meeting we have held with the Parks Department

          8  because there is always somewhere to go and there

          9  are so many people here, and you have a lot of

         10  people here now, and more than 50 percent of the

         11  questions no one can answer, we will get back to

         12  you. Often times you never get back to us.

         13                 Commissioner, you are a great man,

         14  and I appreciate the fact that you serve this City

         15  so well, but we here are now trying to alleviate

         16  some hurt and people are here hurting, and I would

         17  appreciate it very much if all of these staff

         18  people, perhaps you could send some of these

         19  elsewhere or some of the other people down that you

         20  can send elsewhere to attend those other meetings

         21  and hear what these people are saying. They are

         22  saying to us that you are not treating them like

         23  human beings. They are saying to us that you are

         24  demeaning them, and from the information we received

         25  that is true. Because as the Co-Chairman said, his
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          2  statement contradicted almost everything you said in

          3  your statement now, and when we are trying to get to

          4  the bottom of this you are saying we will get back

          5  to you. We don't know the answer.

          6                 Well, it appears to me if you don't

          7  know the answer, maybe you should employ some of

          8  these WEP workers to try and help you find the

          9  answers.

         10                 I am not trying to reprimand you,

         11  sir. I am not saying that, I am trying to say to you

         12  it is an urgency. It is a holiday season, they all

         13  need time and money to look after themselves and

         14  their children just like you and I will. So, I hope

         15  you will let somebody stay here.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Commissioner,

         17  there are two choices; you can accede to our request

         18  and simply take a break in your testimony and we

         19  will listen to three other people and that is the

         20  pleasant way to do it; or we can attempt to adjourn

         21  or suspend the meeting. We have that power. And then

         22  we will hear from three other people and call you

         23  back. You can imply that you are going to leave,

         24  then we will subpoena you and it will just escalate.

         25                 So, I mean, let's just get this done,
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          2  we could be done.  We will only take a five minute

          3  or so, six minute, eight-minute break, whatever it

          4  is, and you will regroup and then we will finish up.

          5  I mean, I don't understand the problem. It is a

          6  request but we can do it.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Well,

          8  my understanding was that you wanted us to come

          9  down, you wanted us to testify and you wanted to ask

         10  us some questions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: It

         13  seems to me that that is a logical sequence of

         14  events and we have tried to oblige.

         15                 We have tried to reach out and to

         16  find out if there are any particular areas that

         17  there was interest in, and we would have prepared in

         18  greater detail. We don't carry these details, you

         19  know, but they are available and we will supply them

         20  to you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: You should

         22  carry them to the hearings. You should bring someone

         23  with records and documents.

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:

         25  Absolutely. And as I say, we tried to reach out and
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          2  we tried to find out were there any particular areas

          3  that were of concern. We respect your right to know,

          4  but on the other hand --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Commissioner,

          6  let me try to suggest something. I think we can have

          7  as much as 45 minutes more with you, or we could do

          8  it the way we intend to do it, which will be listen

          9  to a couple more people to add some dynamic and be

         10  done in less than the full 45 minutes that it would

         11  take by just continuing with you. So, it is in all

         12  our interest if you would just step to be excused

         13  for a few moments, regroup to finish the questions

         14  and answers. We have to go through that paragraph

         15  for your numbers, it is to your advantage to be able

         16  to regroup with your staff to be able to answer the

         17  questions and finish on a positive note. We will

         18  hear from three other statements and then we will

         19  recall you as witnesses. It is pretty

         20  straightforward.

         21                 So, we are just going to be a very

         22  brief few moments and then we will recall you. So,

         23  the witnesses are excused for a ten-minute interval.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Commissioner, if

         25  you are going out to regroup, leave some of your
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          2  people in here, please.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Patricia

          5  Holley, Ralph Tricoche and Bruce Carson, if the

          6  three of you would join us, please.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Could I just

          8  ask, Mr. Chair, while we are -- Mr. Chairs or

          9  Misters Chair, are they coming back?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Yes, they are

         11  coming back in about ten minutes. They are going to

         12  take a little recess, they are going to use the

         13  bathroom, they can regroup and they are back in ten

         14  minutes.

         15                 Okay, Mr. Carson --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Mr.

         17  Chairman, can you just ask for our information how

         18  many employees of the Parks Department are still

         19  here in the room?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: How many

         21  people are employed as full-time employees of the

         22  Parks Department? One. Apparently the rest of the

         23  brain trust is outside. They left one behind.

         24                 Let the record reflect that of the 20

         25  plus some odd people who were here, all of them are
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          2  in the hall trying to regroup and one of them is

          3  left behind. No editorial, let's just let the record

          4  reflect that.

          5                 Mr. Carson.

          6                 MR. CARSON: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Bruce Carson,

          8  please tell us who you are and the main things, you

          9  know, what you want us to know, so that we can then

         10  conclude back with the group.

         11                 MR. CARSON: Yes. Good afternoon. My

         12  name is Bruce Carson, and I have been sitting here

         13  for almost two hours hearing the Commissioner saying

         14  that he doesn't know or he will get back to us.

         15  Well, I can't get back to you but I do know about

         16  WEP. As a Park WEP worker I work approximately 51

         17  every two weeks. My duties as a WEP worker included

         18  picking up trash, emptying garbage bags, raking

         19  leaves and sweeping local parks.

         20                 I was part of a mobile unit of WEP

         21  workers that went to different parks all over the

         22  City. On average our mobile unit cleaned and worked

         23  and cleaned about five parks per day. While cleaning

         24  and doing repairs in these parks, myself and other

         25  WEP workers frequently encountered use of hypodermic
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          2  needles. I was never given training as to how I

          3  would pick up those needles for safety. Furthermore,

          4  I received no training or information about

          5  potential hazards in coming in contact with these

          6  medical wastes.

          7                 None of the co-workers received any

          8  type of training either. During the time that I was

          9  a WEP worker I learned that there was a tool that

         10  the park workers used to pick up needles. I never

         11  saw this instrument until I asked for it, but we

         12  never got it.

         13                 When I was a WEP worker in the Parks

         14  Department, myself and co-workers were given these

         15  cheesecloth gloves, they were sent out to clean the

         16  parks with. These are the cheesecloth gloves we were

         17  given.

         18                 Any time I needed personal protective

         19  gear I had to ask for it or refuse to work until I

         20  got the equipment. We were asked to put up fences in

         21  the rain at Central Park. Six members of our crew

         22  had to stop work and refuse to continue until we got

         23  rain gear. And when they asked us to repair wire

         24  fences and cut pieces of aluminum and piping we had

         25  to stop work because we refused to go on because we
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          2  needed protective goggles.

          3                 I took the same risk and did the same

          4  work as the City workers. At the end these workers

          5  got a big paycheck, and all I had in my pocket was a

          6  bunch of lint.

          7                 Earlier this year my mobile unit was

          8  brought to Randall's Island to assist with the clean

          9  up under the Stadium. Upon arriving, I noticed

         10  workers in white uniform and masks coming out from

         11  under the Stadium. I asked the workers what they

         12  were doing and they replied they were putting up

         13  asbestos and they needed help from the WEP workers.

         14  Myself and my other co-workers refused to work. We

         15  were eventually put back on the truck and driven to

         16  another park.

         17                 I also worked in the PACT program. In

         18  the PACT program I worked 35 hours a week. I learned

         19  skills such as building benches and construction

         20  playgrounds and monkey bars and stuff like that. The

         21  training was good, but the sense that I learned a

         22  lot, the skills were not going to get us a job.

         23  Supervisors at work told us to report, told us point

         24  blank we weren't going to get jobs.

         25                 As far as you mentioned about the
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          2  coats, the coats that we were supposed to get that

          3  we never did get, these coats are made in jail, 30

          4  cents an hour. The way he gave the statistics, it is

          5  $10 a coat, that is $7,000 that we don't see. So,

          6  where is the money, you know?

          7                 I would like to end on that but also

          8  saying that we do need jobs and we are not getting

          9  jobs. This is just point blank exploitation of us

         10  and there is nothing else.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Carson.

         13                 Now, Ralph Tricoche.

         14                 MR. TRICOCCE: Tricocce. It is two

         15  c's.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Oh, I am

         17  sorry. We had it spelled wrong.

         18                 MR. TRICOCCE: Good afternoon. My name

         19  is Ralph Tricocce. I live in Queens, Astoria Queens,

         20  and I was a participant in the Work Experience

         21  Program from August to November of 1996. My first

         22  WEP assignment was in Astoria Park in Queens. I was

         23  there for two weeks before I was chancellor to my

         24  own site at Athens Square Park.

         25                 Athens Square Park is a playground
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          2  park in Queens, I was responsible for taking care of

          3  this park with one other WEP worker.

          4                 When I arrived in Astoria Park I

          5  received no instructions or training on how to do my

          6  job. I was handed a rake and told to rake leaves.

          7  When I moved to Athens Park, I was dropped off by

          8  the supervisor and told to keep the park clean.

          9                 The supervisor said when she came she

         10  wanted to see the park clean. I wasn't told I would

         11  be picking up feces or how to deal with bloody

         12  needles. As the person responsible for the park, I

         13  did things like paint, clean the bathroom, pick up

         14  trash. People who used the park bathrooms, sometimes

         15  there is feces on the floor, which I had to clean

         16  up. When I did painting I had to scrape old paint

         17  off and I had no way of knowing what was in the

         18  paint chips that were flying into my nose and mouth.

         19  At no time was I issued any protective gear to do

         20  these things. I was not provided a mask or rubber

         21  gloves to do any of these jobs. I believe I was

         22  entitled to a uniform of some kind, including pants,

         23  shirt and jacket. When I went to work I had to wear

         24  my own clothes, which were ruined by the work I did.

         25                 I received no extra money from
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          2  welfare to buy clothes or to do my job. And during

          3  my job I picked up garbage and anything that the

          4  people left in the park.

          5                 I picked up bloody needles, Pampers,

          6  Kotex, dirty clothing, broken glass and feces. I

          7  received no training on how to pick these things up

          8  and no protective equipment. The only personal

          9  protective equipment I received was one pair of

         10  gloves. I never learned about any hazardous

         11  material, biological or chemical, viruses or

         12  bacterias that I may have been exposed to by coming

         13  into contact with blood and feces, and during my WEP

         14  job I ran the same risk as the Sanitation worker who

         15  recently died during his daily routine when a jug of

         16  acid that was left out for curbside pick up exploded

         17  in his face. If I had been hurt doing the same type

         18  of daily routine, picking up some unknown hazardous

         19  material that had been left in the park, my story

         20  never would have made it in the papers and I never

         21  would have received a decent burial.

         22                 I have no chance of getting a real

         23  job in the Parks Department, I did the same job that

         24  City workers used to do, except I did it for slave

         25  wages. The WEP program is about exploitation, it is
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          2  about indenture servitude with no chance for

          3  advancement or independent for obtaining a real job.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you,

          5  sir.

          6                 Patricia Holley.

          7                 MS. HOLLEY: My name is Patricia

          8  Holley.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Take the mike

         10  real, real close.

         11                 MS. HOLLEY: My name is Patricia

         12  Holley, and I am a member of the WEP workers

         13  organizing committee that is affiliated with ACORN,

         14  which is now representing some of the workers at the

         15  various sites. I was initially assigned to 59th

         16  Street Central Park; however, I would like to

         17  address the HRA situation.

         18                 Upon going to 16th Street and being

         19  interviewed, in terms of what skills I had, I am a

         20  registered nurse and have been for 23 years. I was

         21  laid off from the agency that was closed by the

         22  Giuliani Administration in January of 1995 and then

         23  unsuccessful in finding work, at which time, July

         24  18th, I had applied for public assistance. A very

         25  demeaning system to have to go through; however,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (212) 227-6724

                                                            126

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  when I went to 16th Street I was told regardless of

          3  my skills I had two choices, Sanitation or Central

          4  Park, and that is mainly maintenance work.

          5                 Upon entering the 59th Street, the

          6  supervisor questioned me and said, well, you are a

          7  registered nurse, what is the problem? I said I am

          8  unable to get employment. So, he sent me to 61st

          9  Street to the Commissioner's office and a gentleman

         10  there interviewed me to do a secretarial job because

         11  I had computer skills, typing skills, filing, et

         12  cetera, I was to do this on a 35 hour work week for

         13  a welfare check of $350 a month. I declined it. I

         14  said I will return to the Park and put in my 46

         15  hours every two weeks and continue to seek

         16  employment on my own.

         17                 In terms of equipment and gear, the

         18  only thing that we have ever received within Central

         19  Park are these cheesecloth gloves that you see here

         20  that actually you can become frostbitten in extreme

         21  temperatures. In the heavy rains the people were

         22  given garbage bags to put over their garments to go

         23  out in the rain to rake leaves. We have never seen

         24  any equipment that this Commissioner has

         25  demonstrated in this courtroom today at any site in

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (212) 227-6724

                                                            127

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  Central Park.

          3                 When asked if you don't show up due

          4  to inclement conditions because you don't have

          5  appropriate clothing, you are merely told that your

          6  benefits will be discontinued.

          7                 And because of this intimidation from

          8  the superiors of the Department of Parks, people

          9  have sacrificed themselves coming out in these type

         10  of conditions with the improper clothing and have

         11  gotten sick and I am told that unless they return

         12  with a doctor's note, of course, again they would be

         13  discontinued.

         14                 Aside from that, in the two months

         15  that I have been in this program, I have noticed

         16  that the unprofessional behavior of the supervisors

         17  in terms of the way they address and talk to the

         18  people is appalling.

         19                 I think if anyone in this courtroom

         20  were to hear some of the things that even as well as

         21  close as today in how these supervisors talk to

         22  these adults, it is a very humiliating situation and

         23  I think it is a serious matter that needs to be

         24  looked into.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you very
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          2  much. Let me just add some things to the record.

          3                 Apparently we have a copy of a memo

          4  which goes out to talking about WEP assignments and

          5  apparently it comes to the attention that the staff

          6  occasionally makes inappropriate assignments to

          7  non-targeted WEP agencies.

          8                 The following guidelines are to be

          9  followed when giving WEP assignments, assignments to

         10  Parks and Sanitation, if you are eligible: One, the

         11  Parks and Sanitation only, assignments that should

         12  go to Parks and Sanitation, unless limitations

         13  preclude these agencies, then ZGF (phonetic), and

         14  clearly there is a hierarchy of values that the City

         15  puts to these assignments which appear to have

         16  little regard, if any, to the skills and background

         17  of the people not inconsistent with what you have

         18  testified to.

         19                 Let me just also correct the record,

         20  this is not a courtroom. This is a Council Chamber.

         21                 MS. HOLLEY: Oh, I'm sorry.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: That's okay, I

         23  just want to correct the record.

         24                 And let me also again point out on

         25  the record that it is unfortunate that the direct
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          2  and compelling testimony given by three people with

          3  obvious experience, albeit different experience is

          4  ignored by the Parks Department, when some 25 or so

          5  people leave the room and leave behind one person to

          6  take notes --

          7                 MR. CARSON: Can I correct that,

          8  please, Chairman?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Yes, sir.

         10                 MR. HOOD: Even though I work for the

         11  Parks Department, I am the union.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: No, I am

         13  talking about the guy behind you.

         14                 MR. HOOD: Oh, okay.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I know who you

         16  are, Mr. Hood. You are here representing workers, I

         17  am talking about the one gentleman behind you who

         18  was left to take notes.  I make no value judgment on

         19  it, I just think the record should reflect how hard

         20  would it have been for the last 12 minutes for ten

         21  or so of those 25 or so to listen.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: As my Co-Chairman

         23  makes no value of judgment on it, I do.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Now, we are

         25  going to ask you folks to rejoin the audience and
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          2  thank you for your testimony. It is very instructive

          3  to help us focus on this final part of the hearing,

          4  when we have the Commissioner and his deputies back,

          5  Council Member Duane's line, Council Member Clarke

          6  and Eldridge and then I will finish up with the

          7  record.

          8                 Now, the only person we did not hear

          9  from that would have been in the first sets, and I

         10  apologize, we are going to, but would be Karen Yau

         11  is it?

         12                 MS. YAU: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And Karen, if

         14  you would join us for a moment.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Mr.

         16  Chairman, in this letter that you read that refers

         17  to a memo that will be forthcoming and the letter is

         18  in September, can you request of the agency, I don't

         19  know if it is -- is it HRA's letter?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: It is not

         21  totally apparent, the background, but I will make

         22  sure staff --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: In the last

         24  paragraph it says there will be another memo coming.

         25                 MS. YAU: Council member, if I could
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          2  maybe clarify it a little bit about those internal

          3  memorandums.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Yes. And you

          5  are Karen Yau from the National Employment Law

          6  Project?

          7                 MS. YAU: Yes.

          8                 Good afternoon.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, Karen,

         10  we will give you, with apologies, a few minutes to

         11  fill us in as we regroup the Department.

         12                 MS. YAU: Thank you.

         13                 My name is Karen Yau, I am a staff

         14  attorney at the National Employment Law Project. I

         15  was awarded a Scaddon Aarps fellowship to implement

         16  the Workfare Employment Rights Project in New York

         17  City, and I just want to clarify it a little bit.

         18                 Two office memorandums that have come

         19  to my attention, my understanding is that they are

         20  from HRA staff.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I see.

         22                 MS. YAU: In addition to the

         23  memorandum that was just read into the record, I

         24  also have a memorandum in front of me which says,

         25  the first paragraph: "It has come to my attention on
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          2  numerous occasions that the Agency representatives

          3  are telling clients that they will get a specific

          4  WEP assignment. They are also writing on the summary

          5  sheet that clients should get such a specific

          6  assignment."

          7                 The second paragraph says: "Please

          8  reinforce with your staff that Agency procedure

          9  states that everyone is to be placed in either

         10  Department of Parks or Sanitation with few

         11  individually evaluated exceptions. These are the

         12  target agencies whose slots must be filled."

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: If you are

         14  prepared to give this Committee a copy of the memo

         15  we would like it.

         16                 MS. YAU: Obviously from the point of

         17  view of the General Welfare Committee, part of our

         18  hearing, this series of hearings included one that

         19  we cast great doubt on the serious and sincere

         20  nature of the evaluation and in fact believe they

         21  are herding people into particular agencies and this

         22  memo will be helpful.

         23                 MS. YAU: Right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Is there

         25  anything else that you could tell us today briefly?
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          2                 MS. YAU: Yes. I was invited to come

          3  to this City Council hearing to testify on health

          4  and safety matters and to be frank, I wasn't really

          5  ready to talk about assessment, but I hope that

          6  those internal memorandums offer some insight.

          7                 I have also some copies of my

          8  testimony for Council members, if you are

          9  interested, afterwards.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And excuse me

         11  one second. If you would -- do you understand that I

         12  am recalling the Commissioner and his deputies,

         13  okay? So I assume they could slowly make their way

         14  back but I assume they are making their way back.

         15                 MS. YAU: Okay.

         16                 Thousands of WEP workers are being

         17  funneled to work in the 7,696 slots in the New York

         18  City Department of Parks and placed in danger

         19  everyday at work. Most of these workers work

         20  outdoors in the parks. They must work in all kinds

         21  of weather without adequate personal protective

         22  garments. That means no overalls in the fall, no

         23  raincoats in the rain, and no jackets during the

         24  winter. They encounter the potentially

         25  life-threatening hazards of needles contaminated
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          2  with blood and other toxic substances without being

          3  told of dangers, nor the proper procedures in

          4  handling them and in the disposal to protect the

          5  public.

          6                 They have repainted restrooms and

          7  store area in closed space without adequate

          8  protective masks and inhaled paint fumes. I

          9  personally observed these conditions approximately

         10  three weeks ago in Cunningham Park in Queens.

         11                 The Parks WEP workers face these

         12  safety and health hazards on a random basis. They

         13  work without any right-to-know trainings in

         14  violation of the Hazard Communications Standards,

         15  and in attachment A I have attached a Parks

         16  Department memorandum that laid out for WEP workers

         17  the procedure under which they should deal with

         18  needles that are contaminated with blood. That is

         19  inadequate as a part of right-to-know trainings.

         20                 They are not told of their rights and

         21  they are often misinformed by their supervisors

         22  regarding their rights.

         23                 For instance, a worker who was stuck

         24  by a needle was not told that he was entitled to

         25  getting a Hepatitis B shot, consistent with the law
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          2  and was told by the supervisor that he was not

          3  entitled to workers compensation, contrary to the

          4  law.

          5                 Well, what rights do WEP workers have

          6  in terms of the health and safety protections? Under

          7  the New York Public Employee Safety and Health Act,

          8  or PESH Act for short, public employers must comply

          9  with specific health and safety standards. The New

         10  York State Department of Labor's legal counsel

         11  issued an opinion advising that WEP workers are

         12  public employees for all purposes relevant to health

         13  and safety protections.

         14                 And in attachment B I had attached a

         15  letter issued to Lee Clark who is Senior Health and

         16  Safety Coordinator at DC 37 from the Legal Counsel

         17  advising that WEP workers are indeed employees.

         18                 While PESH provides for reasonable

         19  and adequate protection to the safety and health of

         20  the public employees, and therefore employers such

         21  as the Parks Department must furnish to each

         22  employee a place of employment, which is free from

         23  recognized hazards that could cause death or serious

         24  fiscal harm to their employees.

         25                 Some of the specific things, and I
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          2  think it is important to know what they are so that

          3  perhaps when members of HRA and the Parks Department

          4  come back, perhaps they could address for us what

          5  each of these things they have been doing or are

          6  planning to do.

          7                 They must provide equipment necessary

          8  to perform the work assignment and be protected from

          9  hazards. This equipment includes mask, coveralls,

         10  respirators, gloves, boots, whatever is needed in

         11  order to adequately protect the employees' health

         12  and safety.

         13                 They must also provide training and

         14  education of all workers. A worker has a right to

         15  know what kind of substance she is working with, and

         16  that includes the right to see any material safety

         17  data sheets, or MSDS for short, for any chemicals in

         18  the placement. Those sheets are important because

         19  they provide employees what to do in case of

         20  emergency, what employers and employees need to do

         21  in case of emergencies.

         22                 They tell you, you know, the chemical

         23  information, health hazards, personal protective

         24  equipment requirements, permissible exposure levels,

         25  emergency procedures in cases of spills or
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          2  accidents, and employees could request an inspection

          3  to the past Commissioner. And employees also have

          4  the right to accompany the Commissioner or the

          5  inspector during such inspections.

          6                 I have a feeling I shouldn't bore you

          7  with all of the details of the law, on the other

          8  hand --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: It is helpful

         10  that we have it for the record, so you are outlining

         11  it very well.

         12                 MS. YAU: Thank you.

         13                 On the other hand, maybe more

         14  importantly, I want to talk about how the

         15  enforcement of these rights are going to be done. I

         16  think that remains to be seen.

         17                 In practice that is because WEP

         18  workers are not a part of the Collective Bargaining

         19  Unit, unlike most of the City public employees, so

         20  how effectively they will be afforded protection by

         21  PESH Act is unclear.

         22                 For example, who will be the

         23  authorized representative when there is an

         24  inspection? Their authorized representative cannot

         25  be then shop steward or the union health and safety
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          2  representative because they are not members of the

          3  union. Their authorized representative should be a

          4  person of their own choosing and that is consistent

          5  with OSHA which PESH Act adopts all of its standards

          6  and its language closely tracks that of OSHA. OSHA

          7  provides that the representatives should be chosen

          8  by the union if there is one or by the employees.

          9                 However, this is a previously

         10  unaddressed point of law by PESH. We are currently

         11  now, the National Employment Law Project is

         12  currently writing to the Department of Labor legal

         13  counsel for an advisory opinion and we are confident

         14  that the counsel will reach this conclusion, as the

         15  office has in terms of WEP worker status as

         16  employees.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         18                 And your own conclusions?

         19                 MS. YAU: I am confident that the

         20  law--

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I am sorry, go

         22  on.

         23                 MS. YAU: In terms of my opinion about

         24  the right of the WEP workers as their rights under

         25  PESH, my understanding is that they ought to have
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          2  every right that a public employee in New York City

          3  has.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, I was

          5  referring to your final paragraph, sorry.

          6                 MS. YAU: Well, my conclusion is that

          7  I believe in addition to the worker's health, there

          8  is also the fiscal health of New York City that

          9  should be considered. The WEP workers, because they

         10  are recipients of Medicaid, very often they have to

         11  rely on public health clinics, are going to have to

         12  rely on the benefits that New York City provides in

         13  order -- you know, if they get stuck by a needle,

         14  who is going to treat them? It is the resources from

         15  New York City, and I believe that the conditions

         16  must be dramatically improved immediately to protect

         17  the fiscal health of the City, as well as that of

         18  the WEP workers.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you very

         20  much for being so flexible as to allow me to rush

         21  you a little bit, and, again, the entire document is

         22  in the hands of all of the members, as well as it

         23  becomes part of the record.

         24                 MS. YAU: I hope that was helpful.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Now, can you
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          2  tell the Parks Department that we are recalling

          3  them, having made clear to the Commissioner that it

          4  was simply an attempt to add some additional

          5  comments to the record, and we would like them

          6  recalled.

          7                 And while they are coming in, I know

          8  they are walking in, let me just clear up one more

          9  final item on the record, the testimony regarding

         10  the WEP program and Parks Department was submitted

         11  by Borough President Ruth Messinger who had an

         12  assistant here and may still have some here

         13  commenting on, outlining some of her views on the

         14  benefits that the Parks Department gets from cheap

         15  labor, but the little benefits in the way of job

         16  training, skill development opportunities for the

         17  workers, and this will be submitted as part of the

         18  record and we appreciate that.

         19                 Council Member Duane, if you want to

         20  resume your questions, then Council Member Clarke,

         21  Eldridge and myself and then we will finish. I

         22  understand there were four other potential witnesses

         23  who we will ask when we are done. Is Sheree Fisher

         24  still here? Tyrone Fiester, Ann Alston and Robert

         25  Harris. So, any and all of four of you will be after
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          2  this section of the hearing is closed.

          3                 Council Member Duane, what we are

          4  going to do, with the exception of you, is have a

          5  very tight time clock because we did cut you off.

          6                 Go ahead, Council Member.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: And I forgive

          8  you.

          9                 How many WEP workers assigned to the

         10  Parks Department are working outside the Parks

         11  Department, for instance, for Business Improvement

         12  Districts or non-profits?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I am

         14  not aware of any other than Bryant Park. The Bryant

         15  Park restoration.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: How many are

         17  working at Bryant Park?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: We

         19  indicated before I don't know. I would have to find

         20  that number out.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: And what is

         22  your arrangement with Bryant Park? Do they pay you?

         23  Do you pay them? Do the WEP workers pay them? Do

         24  they pay you? Who pays who?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Well,
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          2  there is a contractual relationship between the City

          3  and the Bryant Park Corporation that provide or used

          4  to provide for payment of the $250,000 by the City

          5  to Bryant Park, I think that that is decreasing. It

          6  is 200 now and I think that is to be phased out.

          7                 But other than that, there is no

          8  exchange of money between Bryant Park Corporation or

          9  the Bryant Park people and parks, they have

         10  undertaken to renovate the park.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Who has?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: The

         13  Bryant Park Corporation has renovated Bryant Park.

         14  There was a multi-million dollar renovation that

         15  they undertook there, and they are maintaining it. I

         16  gather, from what I understand, we are contributing

         17  to the effort some of the WEP help.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: All right, so

         19  for every WEP worker you supply to Bryant Park, how

         20  much less do they pay you? How much less does Bryant

         21  Park pay you, or do you pay Bryant Park?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I am

         23  not certain how many workers there are there, and

         24  the other thing is that I think that that payment is

         25  not related to -- at the time that that agreement
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          2  was drawn up the WEP program wasn't in existence.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: So the

          4  reduction in fees -- the reduction in the amount of

          5  money the Parks Department gives to Bryant Park

          6  restoration is happening anyway, it is already in

          7  the contract?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: It is

          9  governed by a contractual relationship.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: And what does

         11  that contract say? Is it $50,000 less a year for the

         12  next five years until it goes to zero?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: No, I

         14  don't even think it is being budgeted for next year.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: So there will

         16  be no subsidy anymore to Bryant Park?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I

         18  think that this is the last year. I don't believe

         19  that is in the '98 projection.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: So, from '95 to

         21   '96 it went from $250,000 to $200,000 and then next

         22  year it will be zero?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I

         24  believe that is the case.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: What I am going
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          2  to need from you, because you don't have it, how

          3  many WEP workers were assigned to Bryant Park in

          4   '95? How many were assigned in '96? How many are

          5  going to be assigned in '97 and the outyears? You

          6  don't know the answer?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: No,

          8   '95 none.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: It was zero in

         10   '95. Okay, so '96, and '97, how many in the

         11  outyears, and is there a written agreement regarding

         12  WEP workers between HRA and Bryant Park or the Parks

         13  Department and Bryant Park, Bryant Park restoration.

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: No, I

         15  don't believe so.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: There is no

         17  written agreement between Bryant Park and the Parks

         18  Department?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:

         20  Regarding WEP?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Regarding WEP

         22  workers. What about between HRA and Bryant Park?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: No, I

         24  don't believe so.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: So, what if
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          2  someone gets injured in Bryant Park, whose

          3  responsibility is that? Or don't you care?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: That

          5  is gratuitous. I care. You don't know me, but I

          6  care.

          7                 I believe under the terms of --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Honestly,

          9  though, if you cared I would think you would know.

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I

         11  believe under the terms of their agreement with the

         12  City they have --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: On behalf of

         14  whose agreement with the City?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:

         16  Bryant Park's agreement with the City.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: With who in the

         18  City? Not with you.

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: No,

         20  it runs between the City of New York  --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: And the Corp

         22  Counsel? Who signed the agreement?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Oh, I

         24  don't know who signed the agreement.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Okay, because
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          2  you said between the City, I would think it would be

          3  the Parks Department.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I

          5  don't know who the signatories are.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Could you find

          7  out for us?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Sure.

          9  I would be glad to. I would be glad to give you a

         10  copy of the agreement.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Okay.

         12                 But we are focused on WEP here, so --

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I

         14  believe you asked the question as to whether they

         15  have insurance.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Well, that was

         17  a for instance.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: And I

         19  believe that they have liability insurance.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Who is they?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: The

         22  Bryant Park.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: So, Bryant

         24  Park, you are saying Bryant Park is responsible for

         25  the welfare of the WEP workers when they are on
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          2  their site?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: I

          4  must say that is a legal issue that I can't give you

          5  the answer to. I do not know what the legal point is

          6  if a WEP worker is injured on Bryant Park. I don't

          7  know whether Bryant Park is primarily responsible

          8  and the City is secondarily responsible.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Okay, and you

         10  will find out for us who is responsible for that?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Sure.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: But when a WEP

         13  worker is sent  -- this is to Mr. Diamond -- to a

         14  different non-profit, say the Church Street

         15  Merchants, who is responsible in that case if a WEP

         16  worker is injured on the job?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: As part

         18  of the agreement that --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: What agreement?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: The

         21  agreement that HRA has with the not-for-profit

         22  organization.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: So, does HRA

         24  have an agreement with the Bryant Park Restoration?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: No, that
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          2  would go through --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: I just want to

          4  make sure. So, no, with other non-profits HRA does

          5  have an agreement, but whereas with the Bryant Park

          6  Restoration you don't have an agreement; is that

          7  correct?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: We have

          9  an agreement with certain not-for-profits that we

         10  deal with directly that responded to an RFP then

         11  that were awarded contracts. The Parks Department

         12  has a relationship directly with the Bryant Park.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: We don't seem

         14  to have any kind of agreement.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well, I

         16  think they are going to get back to you on that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: They said they

         18  don't. They said they do not have an agreement.

         19  Isn't that what you said, that you don't have an

         20  agreement?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: A formal

         22  written agreement, no.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: No, they do not

         24  have an agreement. But HRA requires with its

         25  agencies that there is an agreement; is that
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          2  correct, Mr. Diamond?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well, I

          4  think there are a couple of different types of

          5  arrangements. There are six agencies that responded

          6  to an RFP that were awarded contracts, those we have

          7  agreements with. Those not-for-profits, like the

          8  Church Avenue Merchants Association also places

          9  workers at other community-based organizations. HRA

         10  does not have an agreement with those other

         11  community-based organizations.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: So, if the

         13  Church Avenue Merchants assigns a WEP worker to some

         14  other group, who is responsible if that worker is

         15  injured when they are in that other office?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well, as

         17  part of the agreement that we have with the Church

         18  Avenue Merchants, for example, they agree that they

         19  will assume the liability.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: All right, so

         21  they have the liability. But you are not responsible

         22  if HRA, which is the lead agency for WEP,

         23  so-to-speak, assigns WEP workers to another agency

         24  and then that agency assigns them to someone else,

         25  in the way that you hold Church Avenue Merchants
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          2  responsible for those workers well-being, you don't

          3  hold the Parks Department responsible for their

          4  well-being? Is that how it works?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: I don't

          6  think that that is right. We have a separate

          7  agreement with the Parks Department which it is

          8  different because they are part of the City's

          9  system.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Do you have a

         11  written agreement with them?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes, we

         13  do.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Can we see a

         15  copy of that written agreement?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes,

         17  sure.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: You need to

         20  wrap up this line.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Well, that is

         22  it for this line.

         23                 Mr. Chair, I think you know what I am

         24  trying to get at?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: I want to know

          3  who is responsible for this.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Yes, I think

          5  it is a very important question. If HRA places WEP

          6  workers in City agencies who is responsible if they

          7  are injured. If the City agencies in a sense sub

          8  place them with either quasi-private, like Bryant

          9  Park or other entities, who is responsible if they

         10  place them in not-for-profits, you are absolutely

         11  onto a very important area.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: I am also

         13  skeptical that there is no agreement that mentions

         14  WEP workers between the Parks Department and Bryant

         15  Park, so I am skeptical if that is the case.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: But if that is

         18  the case, I am even more alarmed.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: So we need to

         20  get the documents and answers to these questions,

         21  along with all of the other questions we couldn't

         22  answer.

         23                 Ultimately I am sure when we bang

         24  this gavel we are going to indicate that we are

         25  going to have a follow-up hearing because this one
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          2  has been abysmal in terms of the actual flow of

          3  information, so I am sure that that is how we will

          4  handle it.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: I have one

          6  follow-up question, and then the other questions I

          7  had are basically on the housecleaning questions, I

          8  guess which you will do at the end.

          9                 Within HRA, what is the, at this time

         10   -- I just find it dehumanizing to say it this way

         11  but I don't know any other way to do it, the per

         12  unit cost per WEP worker, what is the cost to HRA?

         13                 We have asked this before, Mr. Chair.

         14                 And then within the Parks Department,

         15  what is the per unit cost for WEP and PACT, and what

         16  is the cost of the program in general to administer,

         17  et cetera, in the Parks Department?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: HRA first,

         19  please, quickly.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: I will

         21  have to get back to you about that. I don't have

         22  that here.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: We have been

         24  waiting for how long, Mr. Chair?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: You don't know
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          2  how much is involved?

          3                 This is a question we have asked six

          4  different ways for months.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: No, I

          6  don't have that information here.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Well, that is

          8  obviously reflective of your poor performance before

          9  this Committee.

         10                 Commissioner from the Parks

         11  Department, can you explain your role in what your

         12  costs are?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: Your per unit

         14  cost.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: The per

         16  unit cost for WEP is approximately $1,000 per

         17  person, in terms of the approximately 7,000 coming

         18  in, it is slightly less than $1,000 a person.

         19                 And for the WEP program it runs

         20  approximately about $3,300 per person.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, thank

         22  you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DUANE: If you could

         24  supply us with how it is that those figures are

         25  arrived at?
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          2                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Council Member

          4  Clarke.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chairman.

          7                 I guess after hearing the WEP workers

          8  and their testimony, I would just want to preface my

          9  statement before I ask the question by going on the

         10  record as saying, as awful as slavery must have been

         11  for my forebearers, for people to be in the park

         12  doing the kinds of things that they are doing now, I

         13  think it is even more dehumanizing without the

         14  chains on. And I am both ashamed as a member of this

         15  body, as well as angered, recognizing how human

         16  beings are being used.

         17                 Even if we agree that people should

         18  work for their check, they should be able to do it

         19  with dignity and in dignity and be given the tools

         20  that others are given to perform the same kind of

         21  work that they are doing.

         22                 The very fact that you would have

         23  them pick up syringes and needles and all kinds of

         24  debris without being protected, if they were a part

         25  of a union there would be an agreement that they
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          2  would have to be given those things.

          3                 And the fact that we ask them to work

          4  for a check, the only thing that we could do is to

          5  give them some human dignity. I am very much

          6  ashamed.

          7                 Let me ask a question. If somebody is

          8  a registered nurse, there are 11 municipal hospitals

          9  in the City of New York owned and operated by the

         10  City of New York, why would a registered nurse have

         11  to work for a check when you could place her? And I

         12  will take her at Kings County Hospital because we

         13  are short of nurses. The nurses were cut at Kings

         14  County.

         15                 So, if you have a registered nurse

         16  and you could not dignify her training and her

         17  experience with a real job in the City, I think that

         18  is a damn shame and you could put that word

         19  adjective in front of it on the record, I said it.

         20                 What is the purpose then of you and

         21  the substance and the content of the orientation

         22  that WEP workers are given, what is the purpose of

         23  it? What is the substance of it? How long does this

         24  orientation take? Do you look at the standard of

         25  education that people bring to the Work Experience
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          2  Program and then create whatever it is you create to

          3  have them work this check-off so they do it in

          4  dignity?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Mr. Diamond,

          6  please, quickly.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And the

          9  specific case is someone who is trained as a

         10  registered nurse who gets assigned to sweep the

         11  parks, we want to know why? Why does that not tell

         12  us that your evaluation is nothing but a meaningless

         13  exercise to force to get people into your two

         14  agencies, Parks and Sanitation?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: We do

         16  have a very large program with the Health and

         17  Hospitals Corporation with over 2,000 participants,

         18  so there are certainly many people who are being

         19  referred to the City hospitals. I don't know the

         20  specifics of the case you are talking about, but in

         21  general when people do come in, they are asked a

         22  variety of questions about their background, their

         23  educational level, their experience, and then a

         24  match is made with what is available in City

         25  agencies.
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          2                 I think the Parks Department has

          3  indicated in previous testimony that at the Parks

          4  Department they do a further refinement and try and

          5  identify people with skills.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: No, they

          7  indicated that virtually all 7,000 are sweeping with

          8  a few exceptions, that is what they indicated. I can

          9  read it back if you would like.

         10                 Go on.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: That is

         12  all I have.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Is there a

         14  standard assessment form? A standard form that HRA

         15  uses in intake that would tell this Council

         16  Committee on General Welfare what you ask those

         17  participants when they come in, their educational

         18  standards, their work experience, so that if you at

         19  HRA are going to replace somebody, that they are

         20  replaced based on their education, their training

         21  and their experience so that they can maximize their

         22  own self worth and self image in a placement that

         23  they get?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: There

         25  are a standard series of questions that are asked,
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          2  yes, to everyone.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Can you send

          4  that to our chair so we can take a look at it?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Council Member

          6  Clarke, we do have a copy, if you recall at the last

          7  hearing, of a one-page document.  The particular one

          8  we had, and there are many of them, was about a

          9  woman with a sixth grade education, who was not

         10  bilingual, who was basically moved on to push a

         11  broom as fast as the person with education and

         12  without. So, yes, we can give you a copy of that. It

         13  reflects a minimis approach to evaluation.

         14                 Okay, Council Member Eldridge has a

         15  question.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Yes, I have

         17  a question. I can't resist making this statement.

         18  The problem, Mr. Diamond, is that you justify this

         19  program, and in fact the Mayor justifies this

         20  program by saying we are teaching people working

         21  skills, that we are taking them from welfare to work

         22  by developing the skills.

         23                 The frustration we have is that we

         24  know that is not what the program is. It is making

         25  people work for their checks, which is one thing;
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          2  but it is also making up for the cuts that we have

          3  in government and it means that we no longer

          4  recognize government employment, public employment

          5  as a legitimate kind of business, and that is what

          6  some of us are finding to be so frustrating.

          7                 So, when we get some of these

          8  examples of skilled workers, I don't think the

          9  answer is to find a job for a person with a skilled

         10  worker within the government still on public

         11  assistance, the object is to try to develop enough

         12  jobs in the City so people with skills can get them.

         13                 Anyway, I just have one other

         14  question, Commissioner, that confuses me.

         15                 Is there a set length of time that a

         16  person stays in the WEP program in the Parks

         17  Department?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: It is

         19  nine months.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Nine months.

         21                 And what happens after the nine

         22  months? What happens after the nine months?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: My

         24  understanding is they would go back to HRA and then

         25  HRA would reassign them to another agency.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I see.

          3                 And the nine months would include the

          4  six months -- so, somebody works three months and

          5  they are selected for the PACT program?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: I don't

          7  understand.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Is the PACT,

          9  what do you call it? PACT program, that is a

         10  six-month program, isn't it? The PACT program?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: The

         12  PACT program is six months, yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But you

         14  select from the general WEP population people you

         15  think would benefit from it, right? So that means

         16  that somebody has to work there for awhile.

         17                 So, within the first three months

         18  somebody gets selected into the PACT program? Or

         19  does the six months of the PACT program go on top of

         20  the nine months, or that varies a little bit?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: That

         22  could vary. People could come in right away into the

         23  WEP program and they could move right into the PACT

         24  program if they volunteer.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I see. So,
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          2  if you volunteer, it is almost certain that you get

          3  in?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Chances

          5  are you would get in.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: How many are

          7  in the PACT program?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA:

          9  Currently there is 500 in the program.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So, out of

         11  7,000 only 500 have volunteered to go in the PACT

         12  program?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Well,

         14  it is on a rolling basis, so over the course of one

         15  year, we expect to have approximately 1,000 people

         16  in the program.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But the WEP

         18  people only stay in the agency for nine months and

         19  then get transferred back, right? I can't follow

         20  that kind of math.

         21                 Do you follow that?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: It is

         23  immaterial that 500 rolls to 1,000 because the 7,000

         24  workers roll always to 7,000, so no matter how you

         25  cut it it is one out of seven roughly, in a year.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So, after

          3  six months in the PACT program if you haven't gotten

          4  a job, chances are you have been in the Parks

          5  Department -- well, you are saying that it is not

          6  true that you have been in the Parks Department for

          7  three months as a regular WEP worker, you either go

          8  back into the regular general population until your

          9  nine months is up, or if your nine months is up you

         10  get reassigned back to HRA who assigns you someplace

         11  else, but not to the Parks Department?

         12                 Or do people get back to HRA and

         13  referred back to the Parks?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA:

         15  Sometimes you do get reassigned back to Parks.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Do you know

         17  what --

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: I don't

         19  know.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So it is a

         21  nine month face-to-face, in other words, with HRA?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: It is

         23  basically nine months.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Is that what

         25  you understand?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes.

          3  Just one technical issue, for ADC recipients it is a

          4  six-month assignment followed by a reassessment. For

          5  a Home Relief it is nine months.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: In either case

          7  they can make very little use out of the PACT unless

          8  it is successful because it takes six months.

          9                 That is your point and it is very

         10  well taken, Council Member.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And that is

         12  standard with every agency? That is standard with

         13  your program?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Commissioner,

         16  HRA, let's clean up the record and move on, and it

         17  seems to me that this issue will absolutely be

         18  revisited in 1997, jointly is probably the way.

         19                 Again, I will apologize for being

         20  late, which in part was cause for the juggling of

         21  witnesses, but I do appreciate your cooperation.

         22                 Now, Mr. Diamond, who is M. Deevey,

         23  do you know? M. Deevey, D-e-e-v-e-y? Is that name

         24  familiar to you?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: No, it's
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          2  not.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: J. Braccia,

          4  B-r-a-c-c-i-a, is that name familiar to you?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: No, it's

          6  not.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: L. Gosciewski,

          8  G-o-s-c-i-e-w-s-k-i.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: I don't

         10  know.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Does the name

         12  Alex Tobkes, T-o-b-k-e-s, Director, is that name

         13  familiar to you?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes, it

         15  is.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: What is Mr.

         17  Tobkes?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: The

         19  Director of Fair Hearings Unit within the Office of

         20  Employment Services.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: That is

         22  someone who works for you?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: That is

         24  correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And I am
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          2  reading from a memo, which I will provide you a

          3  copy, dated September 24th. Subject: Assignment of

          4  clients after hearings. Dated September 24th, 1996.

          5  Give that to Mr. Diamond, these are only for him,

          6  these questions.

          7                 "It has come to my attention" -- the

          8  memo reads -- "on numerous occasions that the agency

          9  reps" -- what are agency reps?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: They

         11  would be the people who would represent HRA at fair

         12  hearings.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: These are

         14  people who work for HRA?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: "Are telling

         17  clients that they will get a specific WEP

         18  assignment. They are also writing on the summary

         19  sheet that client should get such a specific

         20  assignment.

         21                 Please reinforce with your staff that

         22  Agency" -- capital a, I assume that means HRA?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: I

         24  believe so, yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: In that
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          2  context.

          3                 "Agency procedure states that

          4  everyone is to be placed in either Department of

          5  Parks, that is capital d capital p, so I assume that

          6  means the Department of Parks for the City of New

          7  York?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: "or

         10  Sanitation" capital s, I assume that means the

         11  Department of Sanitation for the City of New York?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA:"with few

         14  individually evaluated exceptions. These are the" --

         15  I can't make this word out. Can you make that word

         16  out, it is a little blurry here -- "these are the

         17  target agencies".

         18                 Does that mean that HRA has targeted

         19  agencies for WEP assignments; is that what the

         20  lettering --

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: That is

         22  referring to the fact, as we stated at the beginning

         23  of the hearing, that there are certain agencies

         24  where we have emphasized placements.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: That is what
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          2  the English definition of target is.

          3                 "Agencies whose slots must be filled"

          4   -- I am sorry, I didn't finish reading.

          5                 Next paragraph. "No client should be

          6  told by the rep" -- again, "rep" is an HRA person?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: That they will

          9  get a specific work assignment as it causes a

         10  conflict when the client is assigned by our support

         11  unit.

         12                 Meaning, if you told one thing and

         13  received something else, it is a basis to argue, is

         14  that essentially what that means?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well, I

         16  think that the client is evaluated by the support

         17  unit and the support unit might have different

         18  criteria based on the availability.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right. So, the

         20  problem being, if they were prepromised something,

         21  it could be basis for an argument.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: That is

         23  correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         25                 "You will be receiving a memo within
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          2  the next few days that will address various problems

          3  that have persisted within all of OES" -- that is

          4  your Department?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes,

          6  that's correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: All right.

          8                 "Regarding the assignment and

          9  reassignment of clients. Thank you."

         10                 So, I take it Deevey, Braccia and

         11  Gosciewski are some people who worked for you, or

         12  worked in your agency?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         15                 Next memo. To a list. I am not sure

         16  what the list is, although I can read it on the

         17  bottom, Blitz, Hazen and Tobkes, from Nancy Munei?

         18  Who is Nancy Munei?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Muny.

         20  She is the Director of essentially the Home Relief

         21  Program.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: In your

         23  Department?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.
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          2   "Reinstatement to WEP assignments. It is dated

          3  September 27, 1996.

          4                 "It has come to my attention that

          5  staff occasionally make inappropriate assignments to

          6  non-target WEP agencies."

          7                 That would mean other than Parks or

          8  Sanitation, as far as I could tell when these two

          9  memos were taken together.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Parks

         11  and Sanitation and  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: No, the only

         13  two referred to.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: You suggest

         16  the third one is DGS, although not based on the

         17  first memo based on your own knowledge?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes,

         19  that's correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         21                 "The following guidelines are to be

         22  followed when giving WEP assignments. E1" -- what

         23  does E1 mean?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: People

         25  who are referred for a medical examination at the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (212) 227-6724

                                                            170

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  City's contractor HS systems are evaluated.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And E1 is like

          4  healthy?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: E1 is

          6  fully employable.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And they are

          8  to go to Parks and Sanitation only; is that what the

          9  memo says?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes, it

         11  does.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         13                 E2. What is that, maybe a little bit

         14  of a medical problem but nothing serious?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: They

         16  have some kind of medical limitation, yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: "Assignments

         18  go to Parks and Sanitation, unless the limitation,"

         19  which you have indicated might be minor, "preclude

         20  these agencies, then assigned to DGS."

         21                 Is that why you mentioned DGS as the

         22  third most important agency in terms of target?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Finally,

         25   "reinstatements" -- that means after they have done
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          2  a certain cycle of three or six months and maybe

          3  they are up for a second time; is that what the

          4  means? Or does that mean after they have had a fair

          5  hearing? What does that mean, reinstatements?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: That

          7  would generally refer to people who for one reason

          8  or another have come back to the office for

          9  reevaluation.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right. So,

         11  maybe they have been on welfare, had a work

         12  assignment, workfare assignment, unfortunately it

         13  didn't lead to work. Maybe they need to come back

         14  again. Maybe they have done so many months in an

         15  agency, maybe they have left and got a private

         16  sector job but have shown up again on welfare. Any

         17  or all of those reasons?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Probably

         19  not the last one. People who for some reason or

         20  another have --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA:  A need to

         22  start all over?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Right, a

         24  need to start all over.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay. Implying
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          2  they have workfared themselves for a certain amount

          3  of time?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Usually,

          5  yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

          7                 They are to go to the Parks and

          8  Sanitation only, unless the agency specifically

          9  states that the individual is not to be reassigned,

         10  then assigned to the other target agency.

         11                 "The only exception to this rule are

         12  reinstatements to OES", meaning the people you want

         13  to reinstate to yourself; is that correct?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: "With

         16  supervisors written request only." So, if you find

         17  someone you like you get to keep them.

         18                 "And to DGS with explicit telephone

         19  approval from Diane Vervucca or her designee."

         20                 So, that agency has the right to keep

         21  getting a person back if they really like them; is

         22  that essentially what that means?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         25                 Now, how do you suggest that these

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (212) 227-6724

                                                            173

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  memos and these policies square with your stated

          3  position about fair and full evaluation, about

          4  meaningful assignments, about an attempt to match

          5  workers with their skills, about an attempt to

          6  distribute the workers across the broad spectrum of

          7  agencies with a broad spectrum of assignments, as

          8  opposed to what I think these memos mean, which is

          9  you are hurting people without regard to their

         10  background, abilities or the lack thereof, to the

         11  Parks Department first, Sanitation Department second

         12  and DGS third.

         13                 So, you tell me how this supports

         14  your rhetoric versus my interpretation? That is my

         15  final question for you.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: First of

         17  all, these are --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Internal memos

         19  obtained by this Committee through the cooperation

         20  of someone who was upset by their tone and content,

         21  I will make that clear.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: These

         23  memos apply to the Home Relief Program, and the

         24  people who wrote the memos are for the Home Relief

         25  program.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (212) 227-6724

                                                            174

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: I think

          4  what we said at the beginning, which is true, is

          5  that we have emphasized the agencies which

          6  particularly impact the City's quality of life.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: That is not

          8  what I am asking you, sir.

          9                 I am asking you what does this say

         10  about your rhetoric about meaningful and individual

         11  evaluation, about assignments according to

         12  background, about maximizing, the matching of

         13  people's skills with assignments, about the depth

         14  and scope of your evaluation on the one side, which

         15  is your rhetoric, versus my belief that you

         16  basically herd people into three agencies because it

         17  suits you to put thousands of people permanently

         18  into these agencies with no hope of getting

         19  employment with minimis approach to evaluation.

         20                 I mean, that is the two side of the

         21  coin. I am not saying I am right, although I think I

         22  am. And how does this memo support your side of the

         23  story?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAMOND: Well, as

         25  I started to say, we do have significant programs at

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (212) 227-6724

                                                            175

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  agencies which have these Parks and Sanitation and

          3  other agencies which impact the City's quality of

          4  life, but we do have a large number of Home Relief

          5  recipients at other agencies and they were assigned

          6  there, not just Parks and Sanitation.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: That just

          8  tells me why a lot of numbers are there, because

          9  they are your top priority because you can make the

         10  streets and highways and roadways look clean so the

         11  Mayor looks good, I know that. I am asking you what

         12  does that say about the rhetoric about meaningful

         13  evaluation?

         14                 You told me why most of them go

         15  there, because you target them, the memo says that.

         16  What does it say about your claims to meaningful

         17  evaluation? Is it meaningful that they all end up

         18  there? And it is meaningful evaluation or just a

         19  coincidence that they are all there, or it is

         20  because you targeted them so that the streets, parks

         21  and highways can look good so that the Mayor can

         22  look good? You don't have to answer. Withdrawn.

         23                 Now, let's wrap up, okay? But you

         24  should know that you will be back before our

         25  Committee, that is the General Welfare Committee,
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          2  with more of this to answer, because in the light of

          3  the federal actions this will only get worse, in the

          4  next two years followed by the five-year anniversary

          5  when there are not enough jobs for people and they

          6  begin to lose their benefits. I don't put that on

          7  your shoulders, that is the responsibility that the

          8  Congress and the President have foisted upon this

          9  City and other cities and obviously I think they

         10  have made serious mistakes.

         11                 But if we don't create welfare

         12  reform, on at least in part the five or six

         13  principles evidenced by myself and the leadership of

         14  this Council, which talk about job creation and job

         15  training and education and applying for every

         16  available waiver from the federal government so that

         17  we can continue to feed people and assist them when

         18  there are no jobs available, then welfare reform

         19  will be a dismal failure.

         20                 I don't mean to lay that on your

         21  shoulders either, I just need to finish our segment.

         22                 Now, Commissioner, help me out here,

         23  what does this mean when you talk about the job

         24  numbers, okay? Let's go through them one last time.

         25                 From April '94 to November 18, 1996,
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          2  that is the entire length of the program?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: The

          4  PACT program, yes, that is correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay. You say

          6  547 participants are in full-time employment; is

          7  that accurate?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: That

          9  includes six-month positions as well.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         11                 547 WEP workers who went through PACT

         12  in two and a half years have gotten full-time jobs;

         13  is that correct?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: That is

         15  correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And of those,

         17  how many got full-time jobs with the Parks

         18  Department?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA:

         20  Full-time jobs with the Parks Department, 29.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay. Are they

         22  still working for the Parks Department?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Yes,

         24  they are.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.
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          2                 Now, that leaves 518 went somewhere

          3  else. Twenty-nine went to the Parks Department,

          4  okay? The 518, where did they go?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: There

          6  is 58 people that were six-month people.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: They worked

          8  for the Parks Department for six months, and after

          9  six months what happened to them?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: They

         11  either went back to the PACT Program -- they

         12  probably went back to the PACT program.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Meaning went

         14  back to workfare albeit the PACT version?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: They

         16  went back most likely to the PACT program.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right. Which

         18  is workfare, plus some extra hours of training?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I mean, I am

         21  not trying to catch you on that.

         22                 Okay, so that 58 worked for six

         23  months, but that is it. Now they are back in PACT,

         24  i.e. workfare. So that is of little value in terms

         25  of your claim about permanent employment.
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          2                 Of the remaining 460, what happened

          3  to them? The remaining 460, that is what we are up

          4  to, I am doing the subtractions, what happened to

          5  them?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Private

          7  employment.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay. Do we

          9  know where they found the private employment?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: We have

         11  the list, yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: We do. We have

         13  a sense of companies perhaps throughout this City

         14  where they are working.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, good.

         17  That is very helpful.

         18                 Do we have the knowledge as to

         19  whether 460 are still employed? Since it has been

         20  about a two and a half year swing, do we have a

         21  knowledge of whether they are still employed? Do you

         22  have knowledge of that?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: We have

         24  the knowledge of the people who were placed in the

         25  last 90 days. I don't have back going beyond that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

          3                 So, of the 460 that have made it to

          4  the private sector over two and a half years you

          5  could only be sure -- again, no value judgment, I

          6  just want to be sure -- going back 90 days that they

          7  are still working? Going back six months or a year,

          8  year and a half you can't be sure?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: At this

         10  time, no.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And it is

         12  because you don't track that or have records of

         13  that, nor is it necessarily your responsibility; is

         14  that correct?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: We

         16  track it for 90 days.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right. I said

         18  beyond that you don't.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: We

         20  don't.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Now, I am

         22  going to stick with you, but if I were to stop and

         23  ask HRA why don't they know, since you report the

         24  initial stuff to them, it is because they don't

         25  track it at all, let alone -- I don't even think
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          2  they do 90 days, maybe they do. But they don't want

          3  to know. You see, they don't want to know whether

          4  those people who got private sector jobs are still

          5  in the private sector or have come back to the

          6  welfare rolls because they can't make the

          7  outlandish, self-serving and undocumented claims

          8  that thousands upon thousands of people have gotten

          9  permanent jobs.

         10                 I don't fault you for not knowing

         11  more than 90 days, but let the record be clear - 547

         12  people full-time, you hired 29. Fifty-eight that got

         13  six-month work, it is nice but it is immaterial,

         14  with all due respect, and 460 is actually

         15  impressive, hopefully most, if not all of them kept

         16  their jobs, but none of us will know because the

         17  City, not you, but HRA refuses to test. It is a very

         18  simple test. They don't change their name, they

         19  don't change their Social Security number, they are

         20  all tracked by computer. When and if they come back

         21  to the welfare rolls they could identify for us, oh

         22  well, not everyone kept their job, but they don't.

         23  It is self-defeating rather than self-fulfilling in

         24  terms of their rhetoric.

         25                 Now, other than that 547 people, we
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          2  have now broken them down, as a result of the

          3  thousands, the 5,000, 6,000 and 7,000 over time that

          4  have worked for you, have any of the others gotten

          5  jobs other than these 547 through PACT?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: How many?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Well,

          9  280 people got seasonal jobs in the Parks

         10  Department.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Meaning they

         12  worked for three to six months.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Less

         14  than six months.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Less than six

         16  months. Okay, 280 less than six months, and then

         17  their job ended.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA:

         19  Correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And in all

         21  likelihood it continued in the general workfare

         22  population, as opposed to the PACT population; is

         23  that correct?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Most

         25  likely back in the PACT population.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I see. Well,

          3  that is okay, workfare plus the extra stuff.

          4                 And that is it, there is no other

          5  claim you are making today?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: That is

          7  what --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And that is

          9  fine, but the record needs to be clear. 7,000

         10  people, as we speak now, and if we add up

         11  cumulatively like you have done for two and a half

         12  years, you have probably seen three, then at a point

         13  in time five, you may have seen 15,000 people or so

         14  go through your work fare system, I would dare

         15  venture to guess. But I will stick with seven to

         16  ten.

         17                 Okay, 280 who got a chance to work

         18  for less than six months is nice, but of no value

         19  when we talk about permanent employment. It is a

         20  short range value, I agree with you, they have some

         21  training, some skills and hopefully of future use.

         22  But you are not claiming that is permanent

         23  employment? You are not illogical, you are not

         24  foolish, you are not claiming that, correct?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: I am
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          2  saying it is a seasonal job.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you.

          4                 So, net net you hire 29. I used to

          5  tell the reporters when they asked you hired 22, I

          6  mean it is  now 29 so I will correct it, and 460

          7  into the private sector which you hope PACT helped

          8  and we hope they kept their jobs. And believe me, if

          9  those 460 or a significant part of them kept their

         10  job, let me tell you what this chairman and I would

         11  know and other members would know. We would know

         12  that you were doing a better job than the agency,

         13  HRA, as a whole. And we would love to know that

         14  PACT, and the extra energy you put into it, because

         15  I do want to give you some credit for that energy,

         16  paid off. But you don't track it, you don't have the

         17  wherewithal and you don't want to know, so you can't

         18  get any extra credit if we don't know the result.

         19                 But understand that I would love to

         20  be able to say, wow, by the PACT vehicle more of the

         21  460 kept their jobs, but then by the so-called

         22  generic world of work skills but I can't. So, even

         23  though it looks good I can't even give you credit

         24  for it. Twenty-nine is really all we can give you

         25  credit for and that is a shame.
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          2                 Now, having said that, I suggest to

          3  you that the cumulative comments of all of these

          4  members that talk about a permanent underclass of

          5  people sweeping your parks, cleaning your debris,

          6  repainting your signs or your railings or your

          7  building walls is exactly what goes on despite these

          8  numbers, and that when this fellow here represents a

          9  union says there are less of my workers doing

         10  cleaning/maintenance/repairs than they used to be

         11  historically, it doesn't take a genius to figure out

         12  the reason is we have cut your budget, this

         13  administration has cut it, the last administration

         14  has cut it, the last administration cut it over our

         15  objection. We tried to restore it but you have got

         16  less public employees and thousands upon thousands

         17  of WEP workers. That is the reality. That is the

         18  reality.

         19                 And Commissioner, let me understand

         20  your testimony. Is it your testimony that because

         21  WEP workers only clean and public employees do more

         22  than clean, that there is no connection between the

         23  two? Is that the sum and substance of your

         24  testimony?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: No,
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          2  that is not my testimony.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Because before

          4  you went to great length to explain your regular

          5  park workers, your City employees do more than

          6  clean, and so therefore since WEP workers virtually

          7  only clean, there seem to be sort of a no connection

          8  approach.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: They

         10  are all Park employees.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right. And the

         12  fact -- is it not correct, sir, you have been around

         13  the Parks Department, this is you second go around,

         14  you have been around cumulative for many years; is

         15  it not a fact that historically Parks employees did

         16  a lot of, if not all of the cleaning in parks, as

         17  well as other things?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Yes,

         19  the --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: The municipal

         21  workers, civil servants, public employees.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:

         23  Seasonal workers were also involved.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And seasonals.

         25                 So, see, that is the point, sir. The
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          2  fact that 7,000 people do it now, via the WEP

          3  program, and not that you fired 7,000 public

          4  employees last week or last month or 1994 when you

          5  got here, but cumulatively have less and less public

          6  employees doing what they used to do and more and

          7  more WEP folks doing what those public employees

          8  used to do.

          9                 You don't have to agree with that,

         10  but I think you are absolutely creating this

         11  permanent underclass replacing public employees in

         12  contradiction to the law. But that is my opinion.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Well,

         14  that has been the situation since the 1930s. In

         15  1930s you had some 50,000 people in the Parks

         16  Department and the Parks Department was set up based

         17  upon that kind of staffing. That no longer exists.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right. Okay.

         19                 Anyway, let us wrap it. Let us move

         20  to closure. There have been a number of questions,

         21  specific questions asked by the members following

         22  liability questions on when you have all of these

         23  WEP workers, if they get hurt are you liable. When

         24  you sub them out to other facilities, entities, what

         25  have you, are the entities liable.
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          2                 There have been questions raised

          3  about the training and the permanent, the path to

          4  permanent employment, I think we have cleared that

          5  up.

          6                 There was one other question. The

          7  person with architectural experience, did you hire

          8  them in the capital unit? Are they one of the 29

          9  full-time employees?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: No. The

         11  person was interviewed and it turned out that he had

         12  to go back to -- he was reassigned back to HRA and

         13  he is in the process right now of getting his

         14  benefits reinstated, and if he does come back to the

         15  Parks Department he will be back in the capital

         16  unit.

         17                 The capital division --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: As his WEP

         19  assignment. You seemed to imply before that, the

         20  specialists --

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: No --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA:-- Take

         23  advantage of it, I thought maybe you hired them.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER  GARAFOLA: I

         25  think the question came out, if somebody came into
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          2  the orientation, had some skills, we would screen

          3  that person out and try to get them into the right

          4  place.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I just thought

          6  maybe you hired them. Silly me for thinking that you

          7  hired a trained architect for the capital unit

          8  getting one more person off of welfare.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Mr.

         10  Chairman, why does he have to be reinstated? Why is

         11  he reinstated?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Is his time

         13  up?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: His

         15  time relieve problems.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Apparently his

         17  time was up.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: You don't

         19  mean reinstated, you mean reevaluated?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: No, he

         21  missed a number of days of --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: No, then it is

         23  reinstated. They dropped him and he had to go

         24  through the process of getting reinstated.  That is

         25  a sub issue for our Committee, not this one.
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          2                 Anyway, lastly, on the equipment.

          3  There has been testimony by the witnesses that 25 of

          4  you over here had to step out to confer rather than

          5  listen to, you left one person behind, I think that

          6  is a mistake. I thought the three of you were going

          7  to go out and regroup, but all 24 or 25 of you

          8  stepped out, which I think was a mistake.

          9                 There is compelling testimony by

         10  three witnesses that indicate they do not get

         11  serious training, safety precautionary training, and

         12  the right equipment.

         13                 That they get, for example, in the

         14  nature of gloves, that this is the gloves they get,

         15  which they believe to be inferior cheesecloth kind

         16  of gloves, that they don't get -- that in inclement

         17  weather many of them are told to put plastic bags

         18  over your clothes, that they don't actually have the

         19  equipment that you showed us, that the equipment

         20  that you showed us is in effect somewhat illusory,

         21  in terms of its actual use and their actual ability

         22  to use it and have it.

         23                 So, I would like to go through

         24  briefly, in the six or eight minutes we have left, I

         25  would like to go through again because I am not
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          2  clear, exactly what equipment you have, how much of

          3  it and what is given to each and every one of the

          4  7,000 workers and if it is permanently given to them

          5  until they leave your Department.

          6                 Very briefly and succinctly can you

          7  tell us that? What do you have? These are serious

          8  allegations that you are putting people at risk.

          9  Besides all of the philosophical issues and money

         10  issues and welfare, workfare or job issues, a

         11  serious question has been raised, what are you

         12  putting your workers out there with? So, tell us

         13  briefly again.

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: The

         15  field forces, we are talking just now about the

         16  people who are out in the field?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Our

         19  understanding is that they are given the clothing

         20  and equipment that is necessary to carry out their

         21  job.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Specifically

         23  what are they given?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: They

         25  are given gloves, if it is cold they have a jacket.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Are these the

          3  gloves?

          4                 These are the type of gloves? We can

          5  send them over to you. Send these over to

          6  Commissioner Moss. These were provided by three WEP

          7  workers. I just want to know if these were the type

          8  of gloves.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: It

         10  could well be. These are gardening gloves, yes.

         11                 These are the gloves that we are --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Sergeant, can

         13  we see these gloves?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: These

         15  are the ones that we are purchasing now.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: You are not using

         17  those yet?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:

         19  Right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: So, you bring

         21  them to us, these are nice heavy duty gloves, you

         22  bring them to us and tell us about them, leaving in

         23  the air the impression that this is what 7,000

         24  workers have, but apparently that is what they --

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Not
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          2  7,000 workers, we are just talking --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: The outdoor

          4  workers.

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: --

          6  The outdoor workers.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Apparently no

          8  one has these gloves. Let's be clear on the record

          9  here, these are not yet in use?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Just

         11  a moment.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay. This is

         13  very important.

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Those

         15  are the gloves that are ordered, these are the

         16  gloves that are currently in use.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Now, Sergeant,

         19  get me the other pair.

         20                 Okay, apparently these are the types,

         21  these are very similar.

         22                 Now, Commissioner, of the 7,000

         23  workers, how many are out in the field? It is the

         24  vast majority, but what is the number - 5,000,

         25  4,000, 6,000?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: At any

          3  given day it is probably about 1,800 to 2,000.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Virtually

          5  about all of them.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: Maybe

          7  about 2,000 in the field at any given day.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I meant when

          9  they all work, 5,000 people work indoors for you?

         10  Get serious.

         11                 Of the 7,000 WEP workers virtually

         12  all of them do outdoor work when it is their time. I

         13  mean, they don't do it all at the same time. Isn't

         14  that correct?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Most of

         16  them do outdoor work.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right. Not all

         18  at once, I know that, but it is outdoor work. So,

         19  let's start with that.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Now, of the X

         22  number of thousands who do outdoor work, they were

         23  given these gloves. Was everyone given a pair of

         24  gloves?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: So
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          2  far as we know.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

          4                 Now, when did you order these

          5  insulated, Thermatech, fairly heavy. Night and day,

          6  the difference in quality, despite my colleague's

          7  incredulous reaction, a blind man could tell you the

          8  severe difference in quality here.

          9                 When were these ordered?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: A month

         11  and a half ago.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And have they

         13  come in yet?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: I don't

         15  know. I will find out.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay. That is

         17  the first problem.

         18                 Those are the gloves you give people.

         19  Feel them yourselves. See if you want to pick up

         20  garbage and trash, including broken glass and

         21  needles, with those or these.

         22                 I am not saying you are bare-handed

         23  with those on your hands, but there is a big

         24  difference, and that is apparently an issue of

         25  safety.
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          2                 Now, beyond gloves. That is gloves,

          3  what about shoes or boots? Do you provide shoes or

          4  boots, I don't know if you do, to the workers? It is

          5  either yes or no.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: We have

          7  boots here that are also on order that I am not sure

          8  if they are in yet. They were ordered a month and a

          9  half to two months ago.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, so this

         11  is new business, this is old business.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: This is

         13  an upgrade of the previous boot that was --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Do you have a

         15  sample of the previous one?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: I don't

         17  have that, no.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay. Boots

         19  gloves, how about pants? Do you actually give work

         20  pants to the workers?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: No.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, that is

         23  easy, do you give work shirts?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: No.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Do you give
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          2  work jackets? Outer jackets?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: We have

          4  outer jackets.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

          6                 Do you give one to each worker?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: We

          8  don't give one to each worker, no.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Which workers

         10  do you give them to?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: If

         12  someone needs a jacket they can wear their own

         13  jacket and if they need a jacket they will --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay. And that

         15  is the one you brought us that you brought us a

         16  sample of?

         17                 Is that also newly ordered, or is

         18  that the one you have always used?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: That is

         20  the same jacket.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Let's see that

         22  jacket, please. Hold it up. Okay.

         23                 How many jackets do you have in the

         24  possession of the Parks Department?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: I would
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          2  have to get back to you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

          4                 Not every employee, not every WEP

          5  worker gets a jacket, you testified to that. If they

          6  need a jacket, you give it to them?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: So we would

          9  like to know, over the course of the program or the

         10  last six months or eight months, how many workers,

         11  how many outdoors and how many needed jackets, okay?

         12  It is a simple equation.

         13                 Now, other than gloves, boots and

         14  jackets, do you give any other equipment out?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: We have

         16  caps for the summer and also we have woolen hats in

         17  the winter.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, caps.

         19  Everyone gets a cap? Again, everyone who works

         20  outside, let me correct the phrasing.

         21                 Let's start with the summer caps,

         22  everyone who works outside --

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: The

         24  summer cap, everybody gets a summer cap.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: The winter
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          2  wool hat, does everyone who works outside get it?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Wool

          4  hats, yes. We believe they are supposed to get wool

          5  hats.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: The summer hat

          7  and the wool hat, are they anything like the jacket

          8  that you have used all along? Are they new quality

          9  like the boot and glove as we sit here today?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Same

         11  quality.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Do you have

         13  samples of those with you?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: No, we

         15  don't.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         17                 So, what we need is a sample of the

         18  wool hat and the summer cap, because that is the

         19  same. So, five items, let the record be clear:

         20  Gloves, it used to be those, these are the ones it

         21  will be. Boots used to be something, those are the

         22  ones they will be. Jackets, wool hats and summer

         23  caps always have been the same, including up until

         24  today? That is basically the sum and substance of

         25  your testimony.
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          2                 Now, I am a WEP worker, one of the

          3  7,000. I am an outdoor worker, and I want, I express

          4  an interest in it, do I get one of those items to

          5  have forever and ever until I am gone from the Parks

          6  Department, or do I get one every morning and give

          7  it back to you every night?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: The

          9  jackets you would give back at the end of the night.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, what

         11  about the other four items?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: The

         13  hats you keep. And the gloves you keep also.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And the boots?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: The

         16  gloves you keep, the boots you give back.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, so, the

         18  boots and jackets I give back, and the hat, summer

         19  hat or winter hat, as the case may be and the gloves

         20  I get to keep, and that is it?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         23                 Then what we will do is have our

         24  staff meet with your staff, our respective staffs

         25  meet with your staff to understand the numbers. We
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          2  don't have to do it today, we want to know the

          3  numbers, what kind of numbers they are, what we

          4  spend on this. Because we are told that that is

          5  basically all they get, that people don't see

          6  jackets, that they don't see boots. Certainly, the

          7  one allegation that they are cheesie gloves is

          8  somewhat substantiated by the fact that you moved to

          9  a much better glove. Feel the difference, anyone

         10  can. The boots appear to be very nice. They are new,

         11  so they are historically relevant for the future and

         12  I would love to see what the old boot looked like

         13  because maybe it is the same reason that you

         14  changed.

         15                 That is okay that you are improving

         16  things, but it means that people are rightfully

         17  worried in large measure that they are either not

         18  getting enough equipment, not keeping it, or that

         19  the quality was inferior, and that is not a great

         20  place to cut corners. For the gloves, it is not even

         21  a question, you know, the difference.

         22                 So, that is something that we want to

         23  see the finish to the story on, we are not going to

         24  be able to finish at 4:30 today.

         25                 I think that covers every issue that
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          2  every member raised. We will turn it to the

          3  Chairman, Council Member Eristoff may have a comment

          4  to make and Chairman Foster will. My closing comment

          5  is the same as my opening comment, and that is, once

          6  you analyze those numbers, if the HRA did more, if

          7  the Administration was committed more, you would be

          8  able to do better. But your performance is limited,

          9  I believe, by the policies of the Administration and

         10  over 7,000 people are a permanent underclass of

         11  folks pushing brooms throughout your parks and our

         12  parks with virtually no hope of permanent employment

         13  and maybe now this new wrinkle of not being well

         14  enough equipped. And then the liability questions

         15  that came up and the numbers questions that we will

         16  pursue by exchange of information.

         17                 So, thank you.

         18                 Mr. Eristoff.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Thank you

         20  very much.

         21                 Again, Mr. Chairman, I apologize for

         22  not having been here for the entire hearing, I was

         23  presiding over a joint hearing next door for several

         24  hours.

         25                 Just for the record, I agree with my
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          2  colleague and Mr. Chairman DiBrienza about the

          3  relative quality of the glove, but that doesn't

          4  really seem altogether relevant to me, unless it is

          5  relevant to the kinds of tasks the gloves are used

          6  for.

          7                 So, what in fact are the gloves used

          8  for? That would be I think a helpful thing to know.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS:

         10  Basically they are used for very heavy work.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay.

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: This

         13  is not a full-time -- you have to understand, these

         14  gloves are not used on a full-time basis. By and

         15  large we are talking here about raking of leaves,

         16  picking up of litter. The gloves are more than

         17  suited to carry out the task.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF:

         19  Commissioner, if I may interrupt.

         20                 The Parks Department would never ask

         21  somebody to use this glove to pick up a syringe, for

         22  instance?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Those are the

         24  gloves they have, Andrew, and they all pick up that

         25  stuff.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: They use an

          3  implement. They use a dustpan or whatever.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: If

          5  you are talking about syringes and you are talking

          6  about picking up of needles, there is a whole

          7  procedure that has been put into place and every

          8  employee should know the rules on that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: So --

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOSS: No

         11  employee, unless they are designated, touches a

         12  needle.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay.

         14                 Are there other categories of debris

         15  that you would never use a glove like this to pick

         16  up, such as needles? Anything that, you know, like

         17  broken glass?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Like broken

         19  glass which was testified to, or metal or sharp

         20  objects or stuff that is hidden in the leaves. Or

         21  since virtually all of them have testified for three

         22  and a half hours that they do clean-up work, et

         23  cetera, and these are the only gloves available,

         24  while one is not sent out -- no one testified I was

         25  sent out to pick up needles, the issue is whether or
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          2  not they are adequate to do clean-up work.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay, the

          4  point is here, though, the Parks Department would

          5  never -- I mean, it is not the policy of the Parks

          6  Department to require people to use gloves like this

          7  for --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Yes, it is,

          9  Andrew. And after three and a half hours, I am sorry

         10   --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: He just

         12  testified to that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: With all due

         14  respect to your attempts to rehabilitate the

         15  witnesses and support the Administration, after

         16  three and a half hours --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Mr. Chair, I

         18  thought I had the floor, why are you interrupting

         19  me?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA:  Okay, I will

         21  turn the clock on and give you a couple of minutes.

         22  We were wrapping up, I didn't even notice that you

         23  were here until you commented on the gloves.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: I think I

         25  have a legitimate -- I just want to make it clear
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          2  what their position is, and as far as I am

          3  concerned, that is very clear.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: What I would like

          5  to do is perhaps we need to get the printed

          6  testimony and then you will see what they are saying

          7  now is completely contrary to what they said before.

          8  But you have the right to ask the question.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: I have the

         10  right, and I got the response that I anticipated,

         11  which is, it is not the policy of the Parks

         12  Department to require people to use a glove of this

         13  particular quality to pick up syringes in a

         14  playground.

         15                 Frankly, if we are talking about

         16  handling a rake or a broom, these are perfectly

         17  adequate to the tasks.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: May I say, we

         20  gave you both, Commissioner, some questions that we

         21  were not able to get answers to. We would like for

         22  you to give us those in writing and also respond to

         23  either of our Council Members or staff members with

         24  the questions that you could not answer today. Send

         25  the information to us.
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          2                 Let me say this: In the 19 years I

          3  have been here as a City Councilman, this is the

          4  most painful hearing I have ever sat in on. What I

          5  hear here reminds me of what I grew up under years

          6  ago, what they call "Southern shearcropping", where

          7  the shearcroppers never owned anything, not even the

          8  rights to their own bodies.

          9                 What I hear and what I have heard

         10  here in my opinion is urban shearcropping bordered

         11  on slavery. That is my opinion, and I think it is

         12  unfortunate in this day and age. That is my opinion.

         13  I am not asking anyone else to express their

         14  opinion.

         15                 Thank you, gentlemen, for coming

         16  before us, and I did promise to hear from the WEP

         17  workers and I will sit here all night, if necessary.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you.

         19                 The following witnesses, Robert

         20  Harris, Ann Alston, Tyrone Femster and Sheree

         21  Fisher. Assuming you are here, you will join us at

         22  the table.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: We made a

         24  commitment that we would hear everyone, now those of

         25  you sitting down now, you are simply going to let
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          2  these people speak for you; is that correct?

          3                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: All right. Thank

          5  you very much, Commissioner. And I am not attacking

          6  you personally, but I am saying it was painful and

          7  it reminds me of things that I hoped I would never

          8  have to hear of again in this country.

          9                 Here are some other gloves here,

         10  whose gloves are these?

         11                 Would you please identify yourselves

         12  for the record and tell us whatever is on your mind?

         13                 MS. ALSTON: Well, my name is Ann

         14  Alston.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Council Members,

         16  I would like for you to hear these people, please.

         17  Because we have heard the Commissioner for three and

         18  a half hours and 80 percent to 90 percent of the

         19  questions we asked they had no answers for, they

         20  said they will get back to us.

         21                 Would you please identify yourself

         22  for the record and being your testimony.

         23                 MS. ALSTON: Ann Alston.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Speak directly

         25  into the microphone, please.
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          2                 MS. ALSTON: Ann Alston, A-l-s-t-o-n.

          3  I work for the Prospect Park Department. I am really

          4  upset, I wish I could have talked before I listened

          5  to the things that have gone on. Even though what I

          6  wanted to say has already been said, and I listened

          7  to what the Commissioner couldn't answer, okay? And

          8  that made me mad, because you are supposed to know

          9  when you come to a hearing what question you may be

         10  able to answer.

         11                 I am with Acorn, and Mr. Diamond, at

         12  the other meeting a couple of weeks ago, you said

         13  that you would work with us because you knew the

         14  situation in WEPs, but then in turn I think you

         15  changed you mind. So, what is up with that?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I am not Mr.

         17  Diamond.

         18                 MS. ALSTON: Who is Mr. Diamond? He

         19  left already?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Yes. Yes.

         21                 MS. ALSTON: Oh, I am sorry. The one

         22  who was here?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right. The guy

         24  not answering the questions.

         25                 MS. ALSTON: He got away with it. He
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          2  must have heard me talking over there, that is why

          3  he left.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: But I can tell

          5  you that we will continue to pursue our vision of

          6  this program and how it can be made more meaningful,

          7  how it could actually do some good for people, how

          8  it could hopefully lead somewhere. Right now it is

          9  an abysmal failure. It is not welfare to work, it is

         10  welfare to -- which should be two stops, welfare

         11  workfare work in this City, all it is is welfare to

         12  workfare, 50,000 strong with virtually no hope of

         13  being employed by the public sector or the private

         14  sector.

         15                 That is true if you are a student

         16  when they discourage education and they want you to

         17  push a broom. It is true if you are a parent with a

         18  child, they discourage finishing your education,

         19  even though the law allows that. It is less true in

         20  the area of Home Relief because I must say the State

         21  changed the rules, and if you are single,

         22  able-bodied they said I think wrongfully, but the

         23  State did say not education or training, you must

         24  work.

         25                 But the question of work, even that
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          2  work, for example, when they have you work 26 hours

          3  a week, that is because that is based on a minimum

          4  wage division of your hours. There is no law that

          5  says it couldn't be $6 or $7 or $8, there is no law

          6  that says --

          7                 MS. ALSTON: I work four to six hours.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right. There

          9  is no law that says that that nurse, the woman who

         10  is trained as a nurse who lost her job, should have

         11  to push a broom in the Parks Department and not be

         12  more seriously matched to her skills. Clearly, this

         13  is numbers that cannot be managed. It is simply a

         14  matter of forcing people to push brooms for a

         15  living.

         16                 And to answer you, we will attempt as

         17  a Committee, as a group of

         18  Council Members, to continue to make more sense out

         19  of the program. And then we will hear from our final

         20  witness.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: May I ask a

         22  question?

         23                 How many of you actually are still

         24  here that actually work in this program, the WEP

         25  program?
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          2                 MS. ALSTON: I work in the Parks

          3  Department.

          4                 Prospect Park.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: You heard the

          6  Commissioner answer Mr. Eristoff about these gloves,

          7  and they said that you are given special equipment.

          8  Now, this is contrary to what they said. They said

          9  they have special equipment to pick up needles and

         10  things of that sort, is that true?

         11                 MS. ALSTON: It is not true.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Are you trained

         13   --

         14                 MR. FEMSTER: My name is Tyrone

         15  Femster, I am District 4 top cutter. I use a

         16  six-foot lawnmower machine. The glove that is issued

         17  over there is what I use with a Pepsi Cola bottle,

         18  and I have tape. I have proof, I had to pour this

         19  gas and mix oil into this machine. On the machine

         20  there is a lever on there that says do not go over

         21  25 minutes of cutting with this lawnmower. Well, I

         22  have went over that. I have cut close to five blocks

         23  non-stop. I have been burnt by this machine.

         24                 I did sympathize to the people that

         25  does have a job from parks, and I have seen them
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          2  before. I am not here to take any job from a union

          3  person or a person that was there in front of me

          4  that has the knowledge. There is no training of

          5  school. I got there, my supervisor showed me this

          6  machine, there was a red cape or circle that goes on

          7  your back. If you can read or not they would not

          8  know. They put this machine in my hand. I have been

          9  working with WEP for the past three years, I am

         10  still being called as District 4 top cutter. The

         11  only protection I ever had with this machine was my

         12  knowledge of saying keep it away from me.

         13                 There is no protection. I have proof

         14  of this and I am well known in District 4 as Tyrone

         15  Femster. They call me "Red" there.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: What kind of

         17  special equipment did they supply you with?

         18                 MR. FEMSTER: You got the gloves. That

         19  is their equipment.

         20                 Yankee Stadium, in the back of Yankee

         21  Stadium, that is where I am, 161st Street, that is

         22  all you find is needles, crack bottles. I mean, yes,

         23  the law helps you over there, but what they can't

         24  see. They promised us protection from the Parks to

         25  help us out. We have once, I give them the benefit
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          2  of the doubt to say two Parks police that came

          3  there. They says hi to the workers to the park and

          4  they ride off.

          5                 We have had five incidents over

          6  there. There are kids in the back of the skating

          7  ring being there illegally, breaking arms, calling

          8  Paramedics. Again, these are not things that I am

          9  here to just say against Parks, I work there

         10  everyday, I see this.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: We appreciate

         12  your coming forward. We know it is difficult. And,

         13  again, we do this jointly because Council Member

         14  Foster and all the members of the Parks Committee

         15  worry about the parks, the playgrounds, the public

         16  spaces of this City, as we all do. And the General

         17  Welfare Committee worries about the policies and

         18  programs surrounding welfare and social services.

         19                 We will continue to look at this. We

         20  will continue all to struggle to make sense out of

         21  it. I can tell you on behalf of inviting everyone,

         22  whether we agree or not, and I will use myself and

         23  Council Member Eristoff, because once in awhile we

         24  disagree on things, I think everyone wants to make

         25  sense out of this and all of the programs run by the
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          2  City. We want to figure out ways to create that

          3  balance between people who receive benefits and give

          4  back and, yet, have it lead somewhere.

          5                 So, we will continue to look at these

          6  issues and we want to thank you for being with us.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: You have your

          8  finger up over there?

          9                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes, I would

         10  like to say something.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Please come to

         12  the table and state your name.

         13                 MR. SIMMONS: My name is Fred Simmons,

         14  I am an organizer with ACORN, I wasn't going to say

         15  anything, but --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Can you state

         17  what ACORN is?

         18                 MR. SIMMONS: ACORN is, the acronym

         19  stands for Association of Community Organizations

         20  for Reform Now, a national organization. We had a

         21  meeting with Mr. Diamond. Mr. Diamond told us that

         22  he understood that there was a lot of flaws in the

         23  system and agreed to work closer with our

         24  organization and a week later he sent us a letter

         25  and said that he couldn't actually agree to any of
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          2  that any longer, for whatever reasons. Then he

          3  refused to hear from us.

          4                 Therefore, we do understand that

          5  there is a lot of flaws, just like was expressed

          6  here today, and we being an organization with over

          7  20,000 members in this City and have been at over 40

          8  of those work sites and dealing with all of those

          9  WEP workers, have found it to be true, everything

         10  that they are saying, and nothing of what the

         11  Commissioner is saying is actually true.

         12                 I have seen young ladies out in the

         13  bitter cold early in the morning, six, seven o'clock

         14  in the morning with sneakers on. And the boots that

         15  they were talking about, they are more or less like

         16  plastic bags, three or four ply thick. That is the

         17  boots that they have now. So, what they are saying

         18  is totally false.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you.

         20                 Anyone else?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Tell us who you

         23  are.

         24                 MR. JORDON: My name is Tyrone Jordan,

         25  and I work for a WEP program. The only reason I took
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          2  to go to WEP is to try to better myself. They say

          3  they try to get you jobs, they try to help you get

          4  jobs, that is what I would like to do. I got three

          5  kids, I don't want to be in WEP the rest of my life.

          6  I want to better myself, try to go on to something

          7  else, than staying in WEP.

          8                 Because every Friday, I see people,

          9  they get their checks, they go to the cashier. I got

         10  to wait every two weeks for a check that is just

         11  paying my rent and for me to survive and some food

         12  stamps. You know, I would like to have a decent job

         13  and to be able to work for a living, not to be on

         14  WEP all my life. I mean, c'mon, who wants to do

         15  that, clean corners for a welfare check? I would

         16  like to better myself.

         17                 MS. WHITE: I worked for Sanitation.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Come up to the

         19  microphone and identify yourself.

         20                 MS. WHITE: My name is Sandra White

         21  and I work for the Sanitation Department, I have

         22  been in WEP for five months now and it is

         23  horrendous.

         24                 The WEP program is no good for our

         25  bodies or for our minds and it is insane, it is
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          2  inhumane and we are treated literally like dogs. We

          3  have to pick up dead dogs, yes. And I urinated on

          4  the sidewalk last Tuesday because we have to go from

          5  business to business asking if we can use people's

          6  bathrooms and we are rejected so the Amoco guy told

          7  me, no, you cannot use my bathroom. So, I had to go

          8  across the street on the sidewalk in between cars

          9  and a truck to urinate on the sidewalk. This is a

         10  daily occurrence. This is the way I live now in our

         11  WEP.

         12                 We had one person die. We had two

         13  people with TB. My co-worker got bit by a dog and

         14  received 72 stitches and my other co-worker got hit

         15  by a car and it is horrendous.

         16                 The vests that we wear are kept in

         17  the garbage cans. In the morning when we come in we

         18  take them out of the garbage cans, when we return in

         19  the afternoon we put them back in the garbage cans.

         20                 We have a sign, if you go to BK 5 on

         21  Milford on Flatlands in Brooklyn, they wrote on the

         22  door no WEP workers allowed in the bathroom.

         23                 Let's see, we are also -- they also

         24  at that site look to see who the new people are.

         25  They are familiar with the old familiar faces, so in
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          2  the morning they want to know who the new people so

          3  they can say to you clean my car and clean that

          4  woman's stoop. That is not our job, it is horrible

          5  the way we are treated.

          6                 When we are at orientation, we are

          7  specifically told this is not a job training

          8  program, you are simply working for your check. The

          9  only place that is available is Sanitation and Parks

         10  and they said that the only place open that needed

         11  help was Sanitation and that is why my group of

         12  people for orientation there was put there. They

         13  make it very clear. You are simply working for your

         14  check and you have to go where you are assigned to

         15  work. They don't ask what type of skills you have,

         16  what degrees you have. We have deaf people working,

         17  we have people that can't speak English, we have to

         18  follow suit and we don't know sign language. They

         19  take advantage of you and it is horrendous.

         20                 It is pitiful. The equipment that we

         21  are given do not work properly, they are broken. We

         22  use a weed whacker with no goggles. No, they don't

         23  supply us -- we got some work gear like two

         24  Saturdays ago at BK 17, it is not distributed yet.

         25  They said we are waiting for 16th Street to tell us
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          2  when. It is cold now. And we are told that we have

          3  to sign for it. To tell you the truth, the WEP

          4  workers that I work with, we had a discussion

          5  amongst ourselves, they have told us we have to

          6  return that stuff in the afternoon. And everybody

          7  doesn't want, for sanitary reasons, to have to wear

          8  other people's stuff everyday. There is no lockers

          9  for us to put our stuff anyway. So, you have no

         10  coffee, there is no place for you to sit, and like I

         11  said, it is just horrendous. It is really bad.

         12                 And I am sorry, I worked at a bank

         13  for seven years, I got laid off and this is what my

         14  life is subjected to now and it is horrendous, it is

         15  horrible.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: There is another

         17  person to testify. Please come up to the table and

         18  identify yourself.

         19                 MS. WEAVER: My name is Rosemarie

         20  Weaver, and I work in Brooklyn. I have been a WEP

         21  worker, I have been on public assistance now for a

         22  year, and I am a WEP worker and I do not like it but

         23  I am doing this because I have to survive for right

         24  now, but this is not what I want to do. I want to

         25  have a better job. I want to have an education and
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          2  we all want to be trained for better jobs.

          3                 With the equipment that we get are no

          4  good. We are out in the park and they want us there

          5  at seven o'clock in the morning. There is no

          6  protection. I leave my house at seven o'clock in the

          7  morning, there are people that are just walking

          8  through the park, there are kids out there that are

          9  carrying guns or selling drugs in these parks. They

         10  look at me like I am being nosey, we can get shot.

         11  Who is going to be responsible if something happens

         12  to one of us, okay? Who is going to be responsible

         13  then? Who is going to go and tell my family, who is

         14  going to knock on my door and tell my kids, well,

         15  your mother got shot because she was working in the

         16  park. I don't think it is fair for the women or the

         17  men to be endangered by these people out here in the

         18  parks.

         19                 You want us to work? Nobody is saying

         20  that they don't want to work. I didn't hear one

         21  person say they did not want to work. All we are

         22  asking for is that we want to work and we want a

         23  fair salary. That is all we are saying. We are not

         24  saying that we don't want to work, but we want to

         25  work with safe cautions, we want to be subsidized
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          2  and have every right that the municipal person does.

          3                 I have worked with the Department of

          4  Health, and I never had to -- now I have to come

          5  down to this? It is not fair. It is not fair.

          6  Because we are putting our lives in danger working

          7  in those parks.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Again, I

          9  appreciate it. It is difficult for all of you to

         10  come, we understand that, and to testify on behalf

         11  of Council Member Foster and all of us. You should

         12  know that we will continue in the General Welfare

         13  Committee, as well as in the specific area of Parks

         14  to work on these issues.

         15                 Mr. Hood, the last word, because I

         16  have to bang this gavel before 5:00.

         17                 MR. HOOD: Okay, I will make it real

         18  quick.

         19                 I just wanted to make a statement and

         20  comment, if possible, Mr. Chairman?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Yes, sir.

         22                 MR. HOOD: First of all, the reason

         23  why I stayed to the very end of this hearing is that

         24  first I am a human being and then I am a union

         25  officer. I feel, number one, that the WEP workers
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          2  are human beings, and if it ever comes down to a

          3  point that we can't treat another human being with

          4  respect, then we have lost all dignity in this City

          5  of New York.

          6                 I also want to make a statement also

          7  that information has been brought from the people

          8  that I represent in the local to the Parks

          9  Department on the health and safety issues, the

         10  supplies, the clothing and the kind of conditions of

         11  WEP workers or I would say human beings are working

         12  under, and they have not been addressed. So, all of

         13  this information has been given to Parks -- I know I

         14  am going over something that has already been said,

         15  but it is important to know that it has not only

         16  come from the WEP workers themselves, but it has

         17  also come from the union and it still has not been

         18  addressed.

         19                 So, I just want to thank you for the

         20  period to give my comment and statement.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you for

         23  participating.

         24                 And to everyone, again, we will

         25  continue this issue jointly as it relates to people
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          2  assigned to Parks, and then overall as it relates to

          3  the systems that the General Welfare Committee tries

          4  to deal with.

          5                 Let me thank everyone on behalf of

          6  Councilman Foster, who I know had to do all the

          7  opening work, on behalf of both of us and all of the

          8  respective Committee members, this meeting is

          9  adjourned.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you.

         11                 (Hearing concluded at 4:55 p.m.)
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